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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of EGL Holdings Company Limited (“Company”) and
its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as “Group”), |
hereby present to you the annual results of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2016 (“Year”).

During the Year, the Group’s business was under considerable
strain from competing market forces of airlines with their intensive
promotion, online accommodation websites with their vigorous
publicity, and the slowdown of the Hong Kong economy together
with the substantial increase in cost due to the appreciation of
Japanese Yen to Hong Kong Dollar, thus the results of the Group
for the year experienced severe retroversion although maintained
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profit position. For the Year, the Group recorded total revenue
of approximately HK$1,680.2 million (2015: HK$1,858.3 million),
representing a decrease of 9.6% as compared with last year.
Profit attributable to owners of the Company was approximately
HK$18.7 million (2015: HK$150.5 million), representing a
decrease of 87.6% as compared with last year. For the details
of our business performance, please refer to the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” below.

The board of directors of the Company (“Board”) recommended
the payment of a final dividend of HK2.0 cents per share for
2016 (the total dividend per share for the full year of 2015 was
HK15.0 cents), subject to the approval of the shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Nevertheless, putting aside the macroscopic effects from the
above-mentioned market environment factors, the year of 2016
was truly symbolic in the Group’s development milestones. In
December 2016, the Group successfully completed the acquisition
from its connected person, Great Port (Realty) Investment Limited
(“Great Port Realty”), of Ebisu Growth Limited (“Ebisu Growth”),
which owns two land parcels located in prime district of Osaka,
with total site area of approximately 1,602 square meters, where
a hotel has been approved to be constructed in August 2016
and is under construction now. When completed, there will be
about 358 rooms and car parking facilities and expected to
be put into operation by the end of 2017, which will bring a
synergy effect to the Group’s products for package tours, free
independent travellers. Our aim is to bring multifarious travel and
accommodation experience for our customers. In addition, the
Group’s subsidiary that was set up in the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC”) has obtained its operation licence at the end of
2016 and is expected to be put into operation in the second
quarter of 2017, which will bring the Group’s quality service to
the PRC market. Meanwhile, the Group’s subsidiaries in Taiwan
and Osaka came into operation in the first and second quarter of
2016 respectively, which made contributions respectively to the
core business of the Group and the provision of travel bus service
to the Group’s Japan-bound package tours.
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The Group also engaged elements of technology and innovation
in our pillars of business. Love’s On is the first travel agency of
the Group to adopt the technology of virtual reality which was put
into operation in February 2016. In Japan, the Group has direct
agency with over 30 churches for our customers to enhance their
experience from multiple perspectives, select their ideal wedding
venue and to enjoy our tailored one-stop wedding planning
service. The Group also embarked on the technology of virtual
reality for the first time in our travelogues to Korea for a 360
degree personal virtual experience of travel fun for our customers.

For customers to experience beforehand the cultural atmosphere
of destination tourism, the Group set up various unique theme
in its branches. In Tokyo Disney Sea theme store with “Crystal
Wishes Journey” theme, Australia theme store with “Be Water My
Friend” theme and Korea theme store with Korean coffee shops
theme, our customers enjoy themselves in all the essence theme
stores of the Year. In addition, the Group launched the one-
day Cantonese guide service for free and independent travellers
touring in Japan and Korea in which our customers through these
Cantonese speaking tour guides could communicate with local
people freely, and to immerse in the local culture instantly.

SOCIAL PERFORMANCE

The Group adheres to its motto to strive for sincerity in our
practice and proactively make contribution to the society, the
Group continuously fulfilled its social responsibility through
donation and taking concrete actions. The Group supported
social activities that brings positive impact such as visiting elderly
people who live without families, giving out lucky bags during the
Spring Festival, participating in street-running contests in Kowloon
East and Central hosted by a social enterprise, RunOurCity,
Anchorthon held by the Boys’ Brigade, UNICEF Charity Run,
charity football match by Fair Trade Hong Kong and so on.
Furthermore, we sponsored youngsters and covered all their
expenses to attend the international marathon competition in Gold
Coast of Australia, with a view to inspiring their persistent volition,
broadening their horizon and outlook, witnessing their positive
transformation.
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BUSINESS PROSPECTS

Persistent competition from the industry drives us moving
forward. The Group will be devoted to optimising our business
platform, advance the relationship with budget airlines from
being a competitor to a cooperation partner, and develop our
own Online Travel Agency cellphone application (“OTA App”) in
stages in 2017. In the first stage, the Group will provide hotel
accommodation and air ticket reservation service through the
OTA App and focus on Japan-bound travel products. In the latter
stages, the Group will also consider offering reservation service
for train ticket, scenic spot entry ticket, car rental and so on
through the OTA App.

With the commencement of investment projects on hotel business,
bus business and technology business, our diversified businesses
will steadily advance to fruition. The Group will keep the pace of
steadfast development, continuously expand and broaden our
business scope and advance our diversified businesses so as to
fulfill our objective of long-term and sustainable development.

| firmly believe that the Group’s management and staff of all
levels embrace our corporate vision, our missions are customer-
oriented of serving them from our hearts and with sincerity in
our caring services, so that our customers would have happy
experiences from our tours, for us to journey on to successfully
implement our future business goals against all odds of future
economic conditions. | would like to express my deepest gratitude
to all the shareholders, customers and business partners, entire
management and staff on behalf of Board.

Yuen Man Ying
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 23 March 2017
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GROUP OVERVIEW

Facing severe market competition, Hong Kong’s economic
slowdown and appreciation of Japanese Yen (“JPY”) against
Hong Kong Dollar (“HKD”) during the Year, revenue of the
Group dropped by 9.6% to approximately HK$1,680.2 million
(2015: HK$1,858.3 million). Gross profit declined by 39.3% to
approximately HK$263.9 million (2015: HK$434.8 million) whilst
gross profit margin dropped from 23.4% in 2015 to 15.7% in
2016. Profit attributable to owners of the Company decreased by
87.6% to approximately HK$18.7 million (2015: HK$150.5 million).

Comparing with the result in 2015, the profit attributable to
owners of the Company dropped by 82.1% in the first half of
2016 and dropped by 87.6% for the Year, similar magnitude of

decline was found during the aforesaid periods.
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Basic earnings per share for profit attributable to owners of the
Company for 2016 was HK3.72 cents (2015: HK29.95 cents).
Details of utilisation of net proceeds from the initial public offering
of the shares of the Company (“IPO”) will be discussed in the
sub-section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis — Use
of proceeds from the IPO” below.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

The principal activities of the Group comprise provision of
package tours, free independent travellers (“FIT”) packages,
individual travel elements (together with FIT packages referred
to as “FIT Products”) and ancillary travel related products and
services. The Group has invested in a newly setup travel agency
company in Taiwan and a tourist transportation company in
Osaka, Japan, which extended the Group’s synergy on improving
integrated service capabilities. The new operation of the subsidiary
in Taiwan has officially commenced operation in the first quarter of
2016, and that of Osaka has commenced operation in the second
quarter of 2016. In addition, the Group’s subsidiary established
in the PRC has been granted the travel agent licence by the end
of 2016 and is expected to commence operation in the second
quarter of 2017 to bring the Group’s quality services to the PRC
market.

The Group has successfully completed the acquisition from its
connected person Great Port Realty of Ebisu Growth in December
2016, which owns two land parcels of approximately 1,602
square meters in Osaka, Japan. In August 2016, approval for
construction of a hotel on the land has been granted, and the
hotel building is currently under construction (“Hotel Development
Project”). The hotel is expected to have about 358 rooms and
car parking facilities, and will be put into operation by the end
of 2017, which will bring synergy effect to the Group’s package
tours and FIT products by providing guests with multifarious travel
and accommodation experience. This acquisition constituted a
major and connected transaction of the Company. For further
details of the said acquisition, please refer to the announcements
of the Company dated 4 November 2016 and 16 December 2016
and the circular of the Company dated 25 November 2016.
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From business segment perspective, the contributions from
various business segments for the years indicated are set out as

follows:

2015

W E EH=
Gross profit
Revenue  Gross profit margin

TR THT
HK$'000 HK$'000 %
1,085,640 227,204 20.9
574,898 77,525 13.5
1,660,538 304,729 18.4
197,803 130,022 65.7
1,858,341 434,751 234

PACKAGE TOURS

Revenue from package tours mainly represents tour fees received
from customers for outbound package tours. The main source
of the Group’s revenue is derived from package tours, which
contributed 89.6% to the Group’s total revenue during 2016 (2015:
89.4%).

Japan-bound package tours remain the major source of the
Group’s revenue. Despite the growing number of customers from
117,175 in 2015 to 118,083 in 2016, the Group recognised a
decrease in revenue and gross profit, and a lower gross profit
margin as compared to 2015 as a result of price adjustment
aiming to maintain customers’ demand and increase in travel
element costs for Japan-bound package tours in light of
appreciation of JPY against HKD in 2016.

In addition, the intensive promotion of the airlines and online
accommodation websites, coupled with the slowdown in Hong
Kong’s economy, had impacted the Group’s results. For non-
Japan-bound package tours, the number of customers decreased
from 78,605 in 2015 to 69,638 in 2016. The Group recognised
a decrease in revenue and gross profit, and a lower gross profit
margin as compared to 2015.
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FIT PRODUCTS AND ANCILLARY TRAVEL RELATED
PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

Revenue from FIT Products and ancillary travel related products
and services mainly represents income from sale of air tickets,
hotel accommodation, public transportation tickets, theme park
admission tickets and souvenirs to inbound tour customers,
commission income from travel insurance services, and handling
fees for remittance services provided to souvenir and merchandise
suppliers in Japan.

Facing airlines’ intensive promotion, massive promotion by online
accommodation booking websites, revenue from FIT Products and
ancillary travel related products and services decreased by 11.9%
from approximately HK$197.8 million in 2015 to approximately
HK$174.3 million in 2016, and gross profit decreased by 23.6%
from approximately HK$130.0 million in 2015 to approximately
HK$99.4 million in 2016.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS

2015
R B 2 Operating profit margin 9.5%
SF R & Net profit margin 8.1%
A FERIFRE Return on total assets 24.1%
KARIHAE A ERERE Return on equity attributable to 41.9%
owners of the Company

T EhEr & Current ratio 2.31&F
2.3 times
B % Gearing ratio =
Nil
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Please refer to the discussion on the Group’s revenue and gross
profit in the sub-section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis — Business Overview” above.

SELLING EXPENSES

Front line staff cost, advertising and promotion expenses for
media advertising and promotional activities’ expenses contributed
to the majority of selling expenses. As compared to 2015, selling
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expenses decreased by 5.8% to approximately HK$99.0 million in
2016 (2015: HK$105.1 million) which was primarily contributed by
the decrease in advertising and promotion expense and front line
staff cost.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Staff cost, directors’ remuneration, bank charges and rent
and rates and management fees contributed to majority of
administrative expenses. As compared to 2015, administrative
expenses decreased by 0.7% to approximately HK$155.4 million
in 2016 (2015: HK$156.5 million) which was mainly contributed
by the net effect of the decrease in directors’ remuneration,
but offset by the increase in other staff costs, the increase in
depreciation of non-current assets in connection with the set up
of various subsidiaries and the increase in rent and rates and
management fees for the Group’s branch offices.

FINANCE COSTS

Imputed interests of approximately HK$0.3 million (equivalent
to approximately JPY4.1 million) were incurred on the bank
borrowings for the Hotel Development Project. But such interests
were capitalised in construction in progress. Save for the above,
the Group had no other loans, borrowings or balances due to
related companies or financial institutions. Nil finance cost was
recorded in the Group’s profit or loss for the year ended 31
December 2016 (2015: Nil).

OPERATING PROFIT MARGIN AND NET PROFIT
MARGIN

Operating profit margin of the Group decreased from 9.5% in
2015 to 1.4% in 2016, and net profit margin decreased from
8.1% to 1.1% (profit in calculation refers to the profit for the
year attributable to owners of the Company). The declined profit
margins were mainly due to the decrease in gross profit margin
driven by the factors already discussed in the sub-section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis — Business Overview”
above.

CURRENT RATIO

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s current ratio was 1.7 times
(as at 31 December 2015: 2.3 times). The decrease in current
ratio was mainly attributable to the decrease in cash at banks
and on hand of approximately HK$192.3 million, primarily in
connection with the cash consideration paid for the acquisition of
Ebisu Growth in December 2016.
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GEARING RATIO

The Group’s gearing ratio was 8.4% (as at 31 December
2015: Nil) as the Group had the bank borrowings for the Hotel
Development Project as at 31 December 2016 while the Group
did not have any loans or borrowings as at 31 December 2015.

Gearing ratio is calculated by dividing the total interest-bearing
loans with the total assets as at the respective year ends.

RETURN ON TOTAL ASSETS AND RETURN ON EQUITY
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

Return on total assets and return on equity attributable to owners
of the Company were 3.0% (2015: 24.1%) and 5.8% (2015:
41.9%) respectively. The decrease in return on total assets and
return on equity were mainly due to decrease in profit attributable
to owners of the Company in 2016 as compared to that of 2015.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE, LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL
RESOURCES

The estimated capital expenditure for the Hotel Development
Project is approximately JPY5,400.0 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$353.9 million translated at the year-end
exchange rate of 0.06554) and the construction work is expected
to be completed by October 2017. As at 31 December 2016, the
amount of capital expenditure of approximately JPY2,442.3 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$160.1 million) has been paid.
The Group finances such development costs through internal
resources and bank financing.

Other than the Hotel Development Project, the Group financed
its operation with its own capital, with the total equity attributable
to owners of the Company as at 31 December 2016 amounted
to approximately HK$321.1 million (as at 31 December 2015:
HK$359.2 million).

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s cash and bank balances
amounted to approximately HK$260.9 million (as at 31 December
2015: HK$453.1 million). Cash and bank balances were mainly
denominated in HKD accounting for approximately 69.6% (as at
31 December 2015: 72.0%), Macau Pataca (“MOP”) accounting
for approximately 8.7% (as at 31 December 2015: 14.7%),
Renminbi accounting for approximately 5.7% (as at 31 December
2015: 4.3%) and JPY accounting for approximately 10.0% (as at
31 December 2015: 3.3%).
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had pledged bank deposits
of approximately HK$22.5 million (as at 31 December 2015:
HK$22.0 million) to certain licensed banks in Hong Kong and
Macau to secure letters of guarantee issued to certain third
parties on behalf of the Group. The Group’s total guarantees
amounted to approximately HK$17.9 million (as at 31 December
2015: HK$18.5 million), which were mainly issued to the Group’s
suppliers, such as airlines and hotels, to guarantee its trade
payable balances due to them.

Also, as at 31 December 2016, property, plant and equipment of
the Hotel Development Project of approximately HK$120.6 million
(as at 31 December 2015: Nil) were pledged for the related bank
borrowings.

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no other pledge of
assets as at 31 December 2016.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND FUTURE CAPITAL
EXPENDITURES

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had capital commitments
of approximately HK$154.3 million (as at 31 December 2015:
HK$5.3 million), comprising capital expenditure for acquisition of
property, plant and equipment and construction in progress of the
Group. The increase was mainly due to the capital commitments
of approximately HK$151.5 million for the Hotel Development
Project.

The estimated capital expenditure for the Hotel Development
Project is approximately JPY5,400.0 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$353.9 million translated at the year-end
exchange rate of 0.06554) and the construction work is expected
to be completed by October 2017. As at 31 December 2016, the
capital expenditure approximately of JPY2,311.3 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$151.5 million) were estimated to be paid in
2017. The Group intends to finance such estimated development
costs through internal resources and bank financing.

Future capital expenditures as stated in the section headed “Report
of the Directors — Use of proceeds from the IPO” of this annual
report, such as refurbishment and face lifting of existing branches
and development of a comprehensive online web portal, will be
financed by proceeds from the IPO as intended.
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For future capital expenditures other than the above-mentioned,
the Group currently intends to finance such expenses by internal
resources.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Directors considered that there were no material contingent
liabilities as at 31 December 2016 (as at 31 December 2015: Nil).

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXCHANGE RISK AND
TREASURY POLICIES

Foreign currency exchange risk exposure is encountered by the
Group to the extent that receipt from customers and payments
to suppliers may not be reconciled, subject to prevailing foreign
currency fluctuations. Instead of relying on hedging arrangements,
the Group had implemented foreign exchange risk management
procedures to closely monitor the risk exposure. The procedures
were established to prevent carrying excessive cash balance in
foreign currencies, of which the purchase amounts were limited
to the corresponding costs of travel elements based on estimated
sales amount for a defined period (one week for JPY and two
weeks for other foreign currencies), to cover the foreign exchange
risk exposure in connection. The objective of our foreign
exchange risk management procedures is to cover the foreign
exchange risk exposure in connection with those costs of travel
elements denominated in foreign currencies to be incurred for a
defined period of not more than two weeks. The procedures do
not allow us to exercise any judgement over the future direction
of foreign exchange fluctuation and are strict procedural steps for
our operational staff to follow.

Other than the transactional foreign currency exchange risk,
assets and liabilities of the group entities are mainly denominated
in its respective functional currency. The Group’s treasury
management policy is to place surplus cash into bank deposits
with licensed banks in mainly Hong Kong, Macau and Japan.
Also, working capital are centrally managed to ensure proper and
efficient collection and deployment of funds, and sufficient funds
to settle liabilities when they fall due. Net foreign exchange gain
of approximately HK$5.6 million was recorded in 2016 (2015: net
foreign exchange loss of approximately HK$4.2 million).
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HUMAN RESOURCES AND EMPLOYEE’S
REMUNERATION

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had a total workforce of
732 employees (as at 31 December 2015: 693), of which 218
(as at 31 December 2015: 221) were full-time tour escorts.
Employees’ remuneration packages are determined with reference
to the market information and individual performance and will
be reviewed on a regular basis. The remuneration policy will
be reviewed by the Board from time to time. Emoluments of
Directors are determined by the remuneration committee after
considering the Group’s operating results, individual performance
and comparing with market conditions. In addition to basic
remuneration, the Group also provides medical insurance,
provident funds and other benefits in kind to the employees.

To intensify personnel training and development, the Group
provides a series of employee training programmes, which aims
to accelerate professional growth and identify competences and
talents of diversified teams. Through operating talent development
scheme and also Youth Upward Mobility Mentorship Program,
the Group has successfully extended the recruitment channels
and enhanced the opportunities on the hiring of high quality
and suitable staff. High potential staff will be groomed and
developed intensively according to the promotion plan towards
the management level. To attract and retain the suitable personnel
for the development of the Group, the Group had adopted a
share option scheme (“Share Option Scheme”) since November
2014. Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, share options may
be granted to eligible employees of the Group as a long-term
incentive. No share options were granted, cancelled, lapsed or
exercised in 2016. In 2016, there was no significant change in the
remuneration policies, bonus, Share Option Scheme and training
scheme for the Group.

OUTLOOK

With the diversified investment in land operation business
overseas, development of the hotel business and enhancement
of mobile application sale channel mentioned in the Chairman’s
Statement, the Group is confident that all such resources and
efforts it put in will help to shape the Group’s future and bring a
promising return to the Company’s shareholders.
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ES5 Results
Wz Revenue
BRAT Package tours

BHITEMSNMEBIMEIRTT  FIT Products and ancillary travel

FERAEE oo K AR 7S related products and services
EH Gross profit
PRTTE Package tours

BHRITERNMEBIERTT  FIT Products and ancillary travel

rEREE @ M AR related products and services
EH AU A R Uezs Other income and
(E518)F58 gain/(loss), net
PTESMIARERR Net realised and unrealised
REW(E18) (loss)/gain on derivative
Wzt 558 financial instruments
BR PSS T AT a7 Profit before income tax
PGB Income tax expense
FERF Profit for the year
IEYERARHE LR FEME O M), (Profit)/loss attributable to
B1E non-controlling interests
PIN/NETE ¥ = DN Y b Profit attributable to
owners of the Company
BREE Per share data
st epl Earnings per share
— HARRHEEE B - Basic and diluted (HK cents)*
2 Jn gz Financial ratios
EFE Gross profit margin
R = Net profit margin*
HBEEEE R Return on total assets*
e 2% [B] 7 2R Return on equity*
TR & Gearing ratio

AP ETE_EEARARER ARG T

020 FEREZRRKRERAT EGLHOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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*

BZ12A31HLLEE
For the year ended 31 December

2015 2014 2013 2012
FHET FHET FHET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
1,660,588 1,524,714 1,498,836 1,252,821
197,803 160,531 148,337 111,784
1,858,341 1,685,245 1,647,173 1,364,605
304,729 224,689 240,604 143,480
130,022 116,274 112,551 84,428
434,751 340,963 853,155 227,908
1,111 6,274  (2,605) 4,446
(131) (485) 2,146 ©)
176,687 90,175 121,097 45,981
(25,253)  (15,668)  (18,309)  (4,943)
150,434 74,507 102,788 41,038
35 - - -
150,469 74,507 102,788 41,038
29.95 18.20 25.70 10.26
23.4%  202%  21.4% 16.7%
8.1% 4.4% 6.2% 3.0%
241%  157%  21.0% 11.9%
41.9%  31.8%  46.2%  25.0%
= Ni EN] Z Ni = Ni

Profit in calculation refers to profit attributable to owners of the
Company
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As at 31 December
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
FiExT FHET FHET THET FHET
EERERE Assets and Liabilities HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS$'000
BEE Total assets 632,556 624,114 474,570 490,057 344,992
FES=E Total liabilities (308,851) (263,041) (240,571) (267,594) (180,564)
- Fa G Total equity 323,705 361,073 233,999 222,463 164,428
BEEFEANRBRITER Bank borrowings included in
total liabilities (53,287) - - - -
A %E Total equity
ZIN/NSIEZ SN Equity attributable to
JEEHE = owners of the Company 321,120 359,209 233,999 222,463 164,428
FEVEAR e Non-controlling interests 2,585 1,864 - - -
323,705 361,073 233,999 222,463 164,428
Wttt B AR T B HA2014F11 A18E MR EF2 Note 7: The results and summary of assets and liabilities for the years
([HBIRER ) WEZE20124F %2013F 12 A31 B IEF ended 31 December 2012 and 2013 which were extracted
ENEEURBEERBBHE NIRAHEERFR - LA from the prospectus of the Company dated 18 November 2014
FARANEEELS  MOEERBERARFRNDERS (“Prospectus”) have been prepared on a combined basis to
MAXSHARAR([BR]) TR EHRERZE indicate the results of the Group as if the group structure, at
FE—HGFE the time when the Company’s shares were listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”), has been in existence throughout those years.
Hlito: EFE@EHHE2016F12A31BIEFEHREAR  Note 2: Final dividend of HK2.0 cents per share (2015: total dividend per
B AER2.0%B (20155 : SRR BB A15.0%8 share amounted to HK15.0 cents) in respect of the year ended
W) - EEAREREZAFAR R RE N EEREBF 31 December 2016 was proposed by the Board. The proposed
ANg FHEFRIEE - final dividend is subject to the approval by the Company’s
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
i3 FELRE M F B 4918,600,000/8 ST A £20144F  Note 3: Non-recurring listing expenses of approximately HK$18.6 million

12AB1 B L FEARR RS ARG BN A -

were deducted from the profit attributable to owners of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2014.
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BEEEWIREAFE 2 FRMEEZGEMIEHRE The Directors submit herewith their annual report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements for the Year.

FEXRH PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

RARZEBEBEBIRELR - NATIMEB AT ZEE  The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The

EBH N A M RERMFEST - principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in

note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

Al 3t 0 R (R 4 DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

M2016%F12A31R A XA 2 Al f#t DR £ # 4 As at 31 December 2016, distributable reserves of the Company
51,700,000/ 7t (20154 : 101,400,000 7T) ° amounted to approximately HK$51.7 million (2015: HK$101.4
million).

2016F F#,  Annual Report 2016 023

g



&A% GOVERNANCE REPORT

EERWE
Report of the Directors

A

XERTIK
NEBEERNFE 2 EEUANLARQR RANEBRK2016
F12H31B 2 EBM AR AR FMETOE156H 7 47
B BHRE - EFRFIERAFE 2P HRE (2015
F:5.081l) - EFEEN2017F6 A26 8 RN A H
BER2.08( - BFERERAAGEERERAFTAE
RO - WELOE - BUR F2017F6 A6H B R EAR
NEIRREMARZRE o« AR R EET AR E
HESNEERETMBRE 2L -

EBOE

REBRAFREZZBLBEAEBRREBER S
MO RNENAFRESEZIRNFEI0E19BEN T FERE
K[ EBEN®EIITISE -

FZ# [ TR %
AEERHZETEIERRB L TNABRRTRESTEE
% REFRERBBAAR - B

() R REBIEE - B - EREAERN
=W FRMERRNBRESEMAEEEGZ
gigea

EFEAEEMNKTHEBER  RERBETE

MBI EZE R MG REHE - BF

HRITARBEO F I - B M RRAIE S MK
024 HFHEEZRERAT  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
N

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year and the state of affairs of
the Company and the Group as at 31 December 2016 are set out
in the consolidated financial statements on pages 70 to 156 of
this annual report. The Directors decided not to declare an interim
dividend (2015: HK5.0 cents) during the Year. The Directors
recommended a final dividend of HK2.0 cents per share, which
is subject to the approval of the shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the company, which, if approved, will
be payable on 26 June 2017 to shareholders whose names are
on the register of members of the Company on 6 June 2017.
There was no arrangement with any shareholder of the Company
under which he/she/it has waived or agreed to waive any
dividends.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the Year and a
discussion of the Group’s future business development are set
out in the Chairman’s Statement and the paragraphs headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 5 to 9 and on
pages 10 to 19 of this annual report respectively.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Certain principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group may
affect its business, operating results and financial conditions,
including:

(i) OCCURRENCE OF NATURAL DISASTERS, ACTS OR
THREATS OF TERRORISM, WARS, TRAVEL RELATED
ACCIDENTS, OUTBREAK OF CONTAGIOUS DISEASES
OR OTHER CATASTROPHIC EVENTS

The demand for the Group’s travel related products,
services and hotel accommodations may be materially and
adversely affected by natural disasters, acts or threats
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of terrorism, wars, travel related accidents, outbreak of
contagious diseases or other catastrophic events. They
may significantly and adversely affect customer sentiments
and demand for travel related products and services to the
affected destinations or for travel activities in general. The
occurrence and timing of such events cannot be predicted
or controlled by the Group and may have significant
and adverse impact on our assets, business operations
and operating results, particularly if the Group is, or is
perceived to be, not reacting appropriately in the wake of
any such event.

(ii) CHANGE IN ECONOMIC CONDITIONS OF MAJOR
MARKETS

The Group’s business is based in Hong Kong and Macau
and its revenue is mainly derived from the sale of travel
related products and services in Hong Kong and Macau.
Any economic downturn or recession in Hong Kong and
Macau could lead to decline in demand for our products
or services and our overall business and operating results
may be materially and adversely affected.

(iii) CHANGE IN ECONOMIC, POLITICAL, SOCIAL
CONDITIONS AND LAWS AND REGULATIONS
RELATED TO JAPAN

The business and operating results of the Group might be
adversely affected if there is any material adverse change in
the economic, social, political situations relating to Japan,
including its foreign relationship with other Asian countries,
or laws and regulations, including building regulations and
health and safety regulations or if there are any serious
natural disasters or disastrous accidents occurring in
Japan, which may adversely impact customer demand for
travel related products and services of the Group related
to Japan and well as the hotel accommodations in Japan.

(iv) HIGHLY COMPETITIVE HOSPITALITY INDUSTRY IN
JAPAN

Our hotel, upon completion of the Hotel Development
Project, might face competition from other accommodation
options in Japan currently existing or which may come into
operation in the future. The success of our future hotel
operation will depend on our ability to compete in aspects
such as room rates, quality of accommodation, service
level and convenience of location.

Further description of possible financial risks and capital risks
facing the Group are set out in note 36 and note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements and the sub-section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis — Foreign Currency
Exchange Risk and Treasury Policies” on page 18 of this annual
report.
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An analysis of the Group’s performance during the Year using
financial key performance indicators is set out in the Group’s Five
Year Financial Summary and the paragraphs headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis — Financial Review” on pages 20 to
22 and on pages 14 to 19 of this annual report respectively.
Particulars of important events affecting the Company that have
occurred since the end of the financial year ended 31 December
2016, if any, can also be found in the above sections of this
annual report and notes to the consolidated financial statements.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AND
COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group is committed to contributing to the sustainability of the
environment and has implemented certain policies to minimise the
impact on the environment from its business activities. The Group
has implemented internal recycling program on a continuous
basis for consumables such as toner, cartridges and paper to
minimise the operation impact on the environment and natural
resources. Recycled papers have also been used as printing
materials. The Group also implemented energy saving practices
in offices and branch premises, where applicable. To the extent
practicable, the Group completed the upgrade of air-conditioning
and electricity systems to achieve the energy saving to workplace.
The Board is of the opinion that the Group has complied
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the Group in all material respects during the Year.
The Group endeavours to refine the approach to addressing
its environmental, social and ethical responsibilities along with
improving our corporate governance and should generate greater
value for all of our stakeholders including our shareholders,
employees, customers, and suppliers as well as the communities.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT

The “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of the
Company prepared in accordance with Appendix 27 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing
Rules”) will be published within three months after the publication
of this annual report.

RELATIONSHIP WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The Group recognises that employees, customers and suppliers
are keys to its sustainable development. The Group is committed
to establishing a close and caring relationship with its employees,
providing quality services to its customers and enhancing
cooperation with its business partners. The Company provides a
fair and safe workplace, promotes diversity to our staff, provides
competitive remuneration and benefits and career development
opportunities based on their merits and performance. The Group
also puts ongoing efforts to provide adequate trainings and
development resources to the employees so that they can keep
abreast of the latest development of the market and the industry
and, at the same time, improve their performance and self
fulfillment in their positions.
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The Group understands that it is important to maintain good
relationship with customers and provide products and services
which satisfy the needs and requirements of the customers.
The Group enhances the relationship by continuous interaction
with customers to gain insight on the changing market demand
for different products and services so that the Group can
respond proactively. The Group has also established procedures
in handling customers’ feedbacks and complaints to ensure
customers’ opinions are dealt with in a prompt and timely manner.

The Group maintains sound business relationship with its
suppliers and service providers, including land, airlines and hotel
operators, globally. In order to have a better and close monitoring
of suppliers’ performance, the Group’s management conducts
performance review regularly targeting the Group’s major
suppliers and service providers, and communicates with them for
rectification and improvements.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years are set out on pages 20 to 22 of
this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Year are set out in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

LIST OF PROPERTY

As at 31 December 2016, details of the property held for
development which is owned by the Group are as follows.

1y 2 FF fE PROPERTY FOR DEVELOPMENT
REFRE B
il RE s K BEHERE
ERa R EE (FFHXK) fli&t
Percentage (FHK) Approx. BE TR B HA
R MRS, B Interest Approx. Gross  Tif®% TIMER  Estimated
i Lot number/ in the Site Area  Floor Area Existing Stage of Date of
Description Location Property (sg. m.) (sgq- m.)  Land Use Completion Completion
BERAANME  BAKRAFARTRER 100% 1,602 10,187 BIE FETIRETFR  2017410R
BEAm—TH2%H13
2#33
A site at 2-18, 2-33 Ebisunishi, Hotel  Superstructure Oct 2017
Ebisunishi 1-Chome, Naniwa-Ku, in progress
Osaka-Shi, Osaka-Fu,
Japan
B 7 SHARE CAPITAL

ARRBZ AR ANE R BT S -

There was no movement in the share capital of the Company
during the Year.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association (“Articles”) or the laws of the Cayman
Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on
a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the Year
amounted to approximately HK$92,000 (2015: HK$2.6 million).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the Year, the aggregate amount of turnover attributable to the
Group’s five largest customers represent less than 30% of the
Group’s total turnover.

The percentages of purchases for the Year attributable to the
Group’s major suppliers are as follows:

hAEER
BIRBEE DL
Percentage of
the Group’s total

purchases
&AM ER The largest supplier 13.3%
SAMERE H Five largest suppliers in aggregate 33.2%
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As at 31 December 2016, Mr. Huen Kwok Chuen, an executive
Director, had an interest of less than 0.001% in one of the
Group’s five largest suppliers which is listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange. Save as disclosed above, no Director, their
close associates or any shareholder (who to the knowledge of
the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) have any interest in the Group’s five largest customers or
suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this annual
report were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yuen Man Ying (Chairman)
Mr. Huen Kwok Chuen

Mr. Leung Shing Chiu

Ms. Lee Po Fun

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Kim Fai
Mr. Tang Koon Hung Eric
Ms. Wong Lai Ming

Pursuant to Article 108 of the Articles, at each annual general
meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being or, if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number
nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire from office by
rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years. Any further Directors
to retire shall be those who have been the longest in office since
their last election or appointment but as between persons who
became or were last re-elected Directors on the same day, those
to retire shall (unless they otherwise agree between themselves)
be determined by lot. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-
election. Accordingly, Mr. Yuen Man Ying, Mr. Huen Kwok Chuen
and Mr. Chan Kim Fai will retire from office at the forthcoming
annual general meeting to be held on 26 May 2017 (“2017 AGM”)
and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management
of the Group as at the date of this annual report are set out on
pages 60 to 63 of this annual report.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, the
Company has in force indemnity provisions as permitted under the
relevant statutes for the benefit of the Directors (including former
Directors) of the Company. The permitted indemnity provisions are
provided for in the Articles and in the directors and officers liability
insurance maintained for the Group in respect of potential liability
and costs associated with legal proceedings that may be brought
against such Directors.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of any business of the Company were entered into or
subsisted during the Year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

For the Year, the Company has not entered into any equity-linked
agreement.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the 2017 AGM has an
unexpired service contract which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2016, the interests or short positions of
the Directors in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company and any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFO”), which were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which the
directors and chief executive of the Company were deemed or
taken to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which were
required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded
in the register therein, or were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
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Name of Directors
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Name of Associated
Corporation

for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model

Code”) contained in the Listing Rules were as follows:

INTERESTS IN SHARES OF THE ASSOCIATED

CORPORATION OF THE COMPANY

FEREEE IR R E
EHEMEE R1DHBE BMHOB D

Total Number of
Shares Held in
the Associated

Nature of Interest Corporation

Approximate %
of Interest in
the Associated
Corporation

RXEHEESE
(EF - BITES)

Mr. Yuen Man Ying
(Chairman, Executive
Director)

BE2ELE(RITES)

Mr. Huen Kwok Chuen
(Executive Director)

REEIFTEE(MITES)
Mr. Leung Shing Chiu
(Executive Director)

BERLT(HITESR)
Ms. Lee Po Fun
(Executive Director)

IBEEEEEEGRAR
(TEEERE])

Evergloss Management
Group Company
Limited (“Evergloss”)

REER

Evergloss

1BheE
Evergloss

rEReE 12

Evergloss

IS EERIAR LA (FraE1) 8,850 (L)
Founder of a discretionary
trust (Note 1)

REEHEE R S
(Ktzt2)

Interest of a controlled
corporation (Note 2)

7,650 (L)

EmlEaA
Beneficial owner

3,300 (L)

WaE1%3
Notes 1 & 3

9,150 (L)

26.70

23.08

9.95

27.60

1. FIEARAR(FEE]  Fiducia Suisse SAZ 2 & B
NE) A R E 18,8508 It 17+ Fiducia Suisse SA
AThe Yuen Family 2014 TrustfyZ5EA © MThe Yuen
Family 2014 Trust 8RN EBRENEEFFTER R LR
ZRERENE(BRXESLENBEAN) ABEX R

AR EYBERE

2. EMEERAERAREE] -

A EREEIE? 650081

3. 9,150 RBEEIER /F » FFE (Fiducia Suisse SAZ %
EHIE AR A8,850/% % {3 © Fiducia Suisse SA%
The Yuen Family 2014 TrustfZ:EA « TBEH+ A

==

ZIEFER B A Z — o A T 300/ IR I & 1% A7) H
LHERBEREBARE

HEEEELERE AR

=N

(L) Long position

Notes:

1. The 8,850 shares in Evergloss were held by Likang Limited (“Likang”),

a wholly-owned subsidiary of Fiducia Suisse SA which is the trustee

of The Yuen Family 2014 Trust, which is a discretionary trust set

up by Mr. Yuen Man Ying whose discretionary objects are Ms. Lee

Po Fun and Ms. Yuen Ho Yee, wife and daughter of Mr. Yuen Man

Ying respectively and both an associate of Mr. Yuen Man Ying.

2. The 7,650 shares in Evergloss were held by Kwok Lai Holdings

Limited (“Kwok Lai”), which is directly wholly-owned by Mr. Huen

Kwok Chuen.

3. Out of the 9,150 shares in Evergloss, 8,850 shares were held by
Likang, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Fiducia Suisse SA which is the

trustee of The Yuen Family 2014 Trust. Ms. Lee Po Fun is one of

the beneficiaries of the trust. The remaining 300 shares in Evergloss

were held by Ms. Lee Po Fun as the beneficial owner.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, none of
the Directors had any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company, or any of its
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO), which had been recorded in the register maintained by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or which had been
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ OR OTHERS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2016, the persons (other than the Directors)
who had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section

IRERIERE

Name of Shareholders

336 of the SFO were as follows:

Nature of Interest

FERDBE

Total Number of

Shares Held

IHEBITRA
BMOBEDL
Approximate
Percentage of
the Issued
Share Capital

gt
Evergloss

Fiducia Suisse SA

HILL David Henry Christopher

HILL Rebecca Ann

BREESEENRA

Value Partners Limited

BIEEEARAF
Value Partners Group Limited

BESEREES
Value Partners High-Dividend Stocks Fund

EmlAA
Beneficial owner capacity

HtaE1
Note 1

Hiat2
Note 2

EHEAA
Beneficial owner capacity

375,000,000 (L)

375,000,000 (L)

375,000,000 (L)

375,000,000 (L)

31,258,000 (L)

31,258,000 (L)

30,168,000 (L)

74.63

74.63

74.63

74.63

6.22

6.22

6.00

L) '

(L) Long position
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26.70% }%.26.24% ° Fl| B & Yohkitg AFiducia Suisse SA
2 2% /A7) » Fiducia Suisse SABMIERIERIE(ETH
ZFEA 0 B() The Yuen Family 2014 Trust @ A3 3
FEER BTEE  [REEDDAIUNEZEFFES
ZEH(HTER)REZRREENEH AR LENBE
N)AEWBER @M ARZHEEE ; () Happyyau Family
Trust « BESFRTENEZFRBEAT/ N RZT LR
EZ-RARNBZRARILHWIBET

2. Fiducia Suisse SAFHILL David Henry Christopherst 4
B - R AR AR F375,000,0000% i 5+ 7 A

5o

3. HILL Rebecca AnnZ 4 &HILL David Henry Christopher
AR BAS - AR R AR B]375,000,0004% AR 15 1
HHEER -

4. 31,258,000f& it H BIZH S EIR QA
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Notes:

1. 375,000,000 shares were held by Evergloss. Evergloss was owned
as to approximately 26.70% by Likang and 26.24% by Yohki
Ryokoh Limited (“Yohki”). Both Likang and Yohki are wholly owned
by Fiducia Suisse SA, which is the trustee of two discretionary
family trusts, namely (i) The Yuen Family 2014 Trust, which is
a discretionary trust set up by Mr. Yuen Man Ying (Chairman,
Executive Director, “Mr. Yuen”) whose discretionary objects are Ms.
Lee Po Fun (Executive Director) and Ms. Yuen Ho Yee, wife and
daughter of Mr. Yuen respectively and both an associate of Mr.
Yuen; (i) Happyyau Family Trust, which is a discretionary trust set
up by Mr. Yau Shui Fung whose discretionary objects are Ms. Li Siu
King, wife and an associate of Mr. Yau Shui Fung, and Tung Wah
Group of Hospitals.

2. Fiducia Suisse SA was held by Mr. HILL David Henry Christopher
who has a deemed interest of 375,000,000 shares in the Company.

3. Ms. HILL Rebecca Ann is a spouse of Mr. HILL David Henry
Christopher who has a deemed interest of 375,000,000 shares in
the Company.

4, 31,258,000 shares were beneficially owned by Value Partners
Limited, which in turn is wholly owned by Value Partners Group
Limited who has a deemed interest of such shares in the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, no other
substantial shareholder or person had an interest or short position
in the shares or underlying shares in the Company as recorded in
the register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the section headed “Share Option Scheme”
disclosed below, none of the Company, any of its holding
company, subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries was a party to
any arrangements which would enable the Directors to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any other body corporate at the end of the
Year or at any time during the Year. Save as disclosed in this
annual report, none of the Directors or any of their spouses or
children under the age of 18 was granted any right to subscribe
for the shares or debentures of the Company or its subsidiaries or
had exercised any such right during the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2016, the Directors were not
aware of any business or interest of the Directors and
their respective close associates that had competed
or might compete with the business of the Group and
any other conflicts of interests which any such person
had or might have with the Group.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy of the employees of the
Group is set up by the Board on the basis of
their performance, qualifications, competence and
job nature. The remuneration of the Directors is
recommended by the Remuneration Committee
and is decided by the Board, having regard to the
Group’s operating results, individual performance and
comparing with market conditions. The Company has
adopted the Share Option Scheme as an incentive
arrangement for eligible employees.

RETIREMENT SCHEME

Details of the retirement scheme of the Group are
set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available
to the Company and within the knowledge of the
Directors as at the date of this annual report, at least
25% of the Company’s total issued share capital is
held by the public under the Listing Rules.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the
Independent Non-executive Directors an annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules and considers all the Independent
Non-executive Directors to be independent.
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE IPO

The net proceeds from the IPO of the Company after deducting
underwriting commissions and related expenses were
approximately HK$115.8 million. As disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 16 December 2016, the Board has resolved
to reallocate approximately HK$14.0 million out of the unutilised
net proceeds from original intended use of “refurbishment and
face lifting of existing branches” to “arranging charter flights to
destination not served by scheduled flights”, for the purpose of
broadening the range of the Group’s travel products and services,
improving flexibility of the Group’s tour schedule and enhancing
the Group’s brand image. The following table sets forth the status

of the use of proceeds from the IPO as at 31 December 2016:

Z2016%F R2016E
FEREZ FrEREL 12A31R 12A31R
REAE BETAE BERFE REVAFIE
Original Revised
allocation of allocation of Utilised up to  Unutilised as at
FriesuERE Use of Proceeds proceeds proceeds 31 December 2016 31 December 2016
T T THL ThL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
() EaHERE (i) Enhancing sales channel
-BNREEREAT - Refurbishment and face lifting
of existing branches 23,200 9,200 5,887 3,313
-BE—E2EMPHER - Development of a comprehensive onling
web portal 17,400 17,400 11,636 5,764
(i) EBEHIYRADE ERALE (i) Promoting brand image and recognition
through market initiatives
-HREINEREERENEHEY - Conducting marketing initiatives with
focus on conventional media channels 9,300 9,300 9,300 -
-BEBEERIEFEAEREA - Employing featured products or signature
FRSERELHED tours marketing campaigns with suitable
spokespersons 8,100 8,100 5,749 2,351
— KRB E - Launching reward and incentive scheme 11,500 11,500 - 11,500
(ii)anse =B AR (i) Strengthening operational infrastructure
-BRETLEARINEZS - Improving management information
YEERENRS system by implementing enterprise
resources planning system 13,900 13,900 13,900 -
- RBREE BRI REN - Arranging charter flights to destination not
EiohkRA2ar: served by scheduled flights 11,400 25,400 11,400 14,000
-RE R AEEREERES - Attracting and recruiting experienced
employees 5,800 5,800 5,224 576
W ERGIMEERTT (v) Developing overseas wedding tours 5,700 5,700 5,700 -
Vv RIEEEE S REM—RAF AR () For working capital and other general
corporate purposes 9,500 9,500 8,412 1,088
115,800 115,800 77,208 38,592
2016F F#,  Annual Report 2016 035

A



&A% GOVERNANCE REPORT

EEGWRE
Report of the Directors

R2016F12A31H * RBAE A AFBEEHMERIEF
O TFEAE BRI BIRITERP, -

B RERTE
RRRRER R BIRE L BRZERN2014511 13
RIS - AARRIRMD 2 ETAE(RI20144
11 A28R) BT BB ATF LAl AARRIREER
SREFERTRILE - EREFEHEENEERSHEE
(BEERTORESEE  UEERKRBAEKR2EEY
AEBCEEHSAIRIEL 2 BR - EF S A RIBRERE
FFEIREAEE - AAEESKEMAHEQRERERAA
B @A RE - REK Bl BERFEERER : SE
REBEIERN B HE A EBHHUAAEER
HE @R HE S A HE A RS EEREE
([BERSEE )R L ERE -

RIRERET B R AR T E B E 2R R
EHFTEZMBRTEERERTERA] TETZ
BRNDEBE  EEARETSBBARRSEITRMD
230% o BRI AR ET SIS AR A RIERA 2 H AR
BN BRE s EREMAIEBET RN BER
ATHEBEEE A AAREREREEETRMEK
B10% (T REBELERE(ERRABRER)E
7718 M AT g Bc ¥ sk 317 2 E W M fp ) - B150,000,000
PRARD - BRIEBARAIRERBRE RS HE - T A
REMI2EAEHE REBREFEIRNSEER
SHERLCERERTERD BITRATRERTZ
RNBHTEBERTEBHDEITROEEIS -

036 ERBERERAT
A

EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

As at 31 December 2016, the unutilised net proceeds from
the IPO were deposited in interest-bearing bank accounts with
licensed banks in Hong Kong.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted the share option scheme (“Share Option
Scheme”) pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by the
shareholders on 13 November 2014 which shall be valid and
effective for a period of 10 years from the date of listing of the
shares of the Company (i.e. 28 November 2014), subject to
early termination by the Company in a general meeting or by the
Board. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide
incentives to Eligible Person (as defined below) and is established
to recognise and acknowledge the contributions the Eligible
Person have had or may have made to the Group. Under the
Share Option Scheme, the Board may offer to grant an option to
any employee, or any secondee, consultant, agent, representative,
adviser, customer, contractor of the Group or any affiliates; or
any business partner/ally/alliance, joint venture partner, supplier of
goods or services to the Group or any affiliates or any employee
thereof (“Eligible Person”).

The number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company at any time shall not exceed 30% of the shares of
the Company in issue from time to time. The maximum number
of shares available for issue under options which may be granted
under the Share Option Scheme or other share option scheme
adopted by the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of
the shares in issue immediately following completion of the IPO (but
taking no account of any shares which may be allotted or issued
pursuant to the exercise of the over-allotment option (as defined
in the Prospectus), being 50,000,000 shares. The total number
of shares issued and which may fall to be issued upon exercise
of the options granted pursuant to the Share Option Scheme to
each Eligible Person in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1%
of the number of shares in issue as at the date of grant unless
approved by the shareholders of the Company in general meeting.
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The subscription price of a share in respect of any particular
option granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be
determined by the Board provided that it shall not be less than
the highest of: () the closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of grant,
which must be a business day; (i) the average closing price of the
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets
for the five business days immediately preceding the date of
grant; and (i) the nominal value of a share.

Upon acceptance of the option, the grantee shall pay HK$1 to
the Company by way of consideration for the grant. An option
may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time after the date upon which the option
is deemed to be granted and accepted and prior to the expiry
of 10 years from that date. The period during which an option
may be exercised will be determined by the Board in its absolute
discretion, save that no option may be exercised more than 10
years after it has been granted.

No option was granted by the Company under the Share Option
Scheme as at 1 January 2016 and 31 December 2016. No share
option has been granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed under
the Share Option Scheme.

As at the date of this annual report, the total number of
shares available for issue under the Share Option Scheme was
50,000,000 shares representing approximately 9.95% of the
issued share capital of the Company.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’
INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Details of the connected transactions (including the continuing
connected transactions) entered into by, and/or subsisted
between, the Group and the connected persons of the Company)
during the Year and which are not exempt under Rule 14A.73 of
the Listing Rules are set out below:

CONNECTED TRANSACTION — ACQUISITION OF EBISU
GROWTH LIMITED

On 4 November 2016, EGL Management Group Company
limited (“EGL Management”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company as purchaser, Great
Great Port Limited (“Great Port”) as vendor’s guarantor entered
into the sale and purchase agreement (“SP Agreement”), pursuant

Port (Realty) as vendor and

to which EGL Management has conditionally agreed to acquire,
the
entire capital of Ebisu Growth, being a property holding company,
at the consideration of HK$124,500,000 (“Acquisition”). As all of
the executive Directors together controlled approximately 60.63%

and Great Port (Realty) has conditionally agreed to sell,

voting power of each of Great Port (Realty) and Great Port
as at the date of the SP Agreement, Great Port (Realty) and Great
Port are associates of the executive Directors and thus connected
persons of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

As disclosed in the circular of the Company dated 25 November
2016 (“Circular”), Ebisu Growth is the owner of land parcels which
are in the progress of being developed into a Hotel, the operation
of which will bring synergy to the existing package tour and FIT
business of the Group, and will also provide an additional source
of income for the Group through such operations, which is in line
with the Group’s long-term strategy. For further details of the
reasons for and the benefits of the Acquisition, please refer to the
Circular.

As the highest applicable ratio in respect of the Acquisition
calculated in accordance with the Listing Rules is more than 25%
but less than 100%, the Acquisition constituted () a non-exempt
connected transaction under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules;
and (ii) a major transaction under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules
and is subject to the reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under the Listing Rules.
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At the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 16
December 2016, the independent shareholders of the Company
voted in favour of the resolution for approving the SP Agreement
and the transaction contemplated therein. Completion of the
Acquisition took place at end of December 2016 and Ebisu
Growth has become an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company during the Year.

For further details of the Acquisition, please refer to the
announcement, the Circular and the poll results announcement of
the Company dated 4 November 2016, 25 November 2016 and
16 December 2016, respectively.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

NON-EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
SUBJECT TO ANNUAL REPORTING AND ANNUAL REVIEW
REQUIREMENTS

Continuing connected transactions (“CCT”) (including Silver
Fortune Plaza 2101-2 Lease Agreement, EGL Tower Lease
Agreement, EGL Tower 10B Lease Agreement, EGL Tower
16A Lease Agreement, Chevalier House Lease Agreement
and China Plaza Lease Agreements, all of which were defined
below) were subsisted (collectively, “Transactions”) between the
Group and Great Port (Note 1) during the Year. As disclosed
in the Prospectus and the announcements of the Company
dated 20 July 2015 and 20 November 2015 (collectively, “CCT
Announcements”), the aggregate annual cap of these Transactions
for the Year (as revised) (“Annual Cap”) is HK$16,000,000. As the
highest applicable percentage ratios under the Listing Rules in
respect of the Annual Cap exceeded 0.1% but were less than 5%,
the Transactions and the Annual Cap are therefore exempt from
the independent shareholders’ approval requirements but are still
subject to the annual reporting and annual review requirements
under the Listing Rules. Please refer to the section headed
“Continuing Connected Transactions” in the Prospectus and the

CCT Announcements for further details.

Set out below are the details of the CCT which are required to
be disclosed pursuant to Rules 14A.49 and 14A.71 of the Listing
Rules. The consideration for 2016 represents the value of the
relevant CCT for the full 12 months of 2016.

2016F F#, Annual Report 2016 039

Ay



&A% GOVERNANCE REPORT

EER WS

Report of the Directors

h#EH - B8R 165 EH
&% RERVERRES ARERAN BRHF  HERRZER BELEL EEER (B7)

Name, Date and Current Term  Transaction Party Counter Party, Nature and Basis for Determining the Consideration
No.  of the Agreement and Rental  within the Group Description of the Transaction Transaction Purpose ~ Consideration for 2016 (HKS)
1 EERSEN05F11ANEE  REBRTHLARLT NEAAETEFREER MEEREATHER BEDEEHATHEREE 5 841,500

([ HplES2101-28EHE]) (TRER]) AR7Z BReELTAE Ma—HE%

A2 EHELR EATRABEM KRB 63 ERATERE ETERR
AHER 2016517182 A01-2E@EEATRL1,6097 R frmfEA N «
20175108318 Rz

AR 76,5007

1 Lease agreement signed on EGL Tours Company  Property leased by Great Portto  For using as a branch  The rental was determined based 841,500
20 November 2015 (" Silver Limited ("EGL Tours), ~ EGL Tours office onarm'’s length negotiations
Fortune Plaza 2101-2 Lease an indirect wholly- between the parties and is fair and
Agreement”) owned subsidiary of  The premises of a total gross floor reasonable, on normal commercial
the Company area of approximately 1,699 sa.ft. terms and comparable to and are
Term: From 1 January 2016 to located at Units 2101-2, 21st on terms no less favorable than the
31 October 2017 floor, Silver Fortune Plaza, No. 1 prevailing market rate.
Wellington Street, Central, Hong
Monthly rental: HK$76,500 Kong
2 BERBER0UENABER  REE ARAZEE NXAAEMETREE DWEERESS 8 BEDEEIATRERETE & 10,399,248
A ERERSAERE]) 2ENBAR fIRAREENMERS SERZNBUNZHENED
EENERBESTREEES R4 FENEBATAE Ho—HE
SR 2014511 B1AZ (1OBARCE LR 12 - 15 216 65 ERATERE R TER
2017510A31H B2E(16EAZIN BREER BB -
144 616 T H ZRINME - (1128
R - 86,6047 15~ 18Z23BEMANE ¢ R(i)
e
2 Lease agreement signed on 13 EGL Tours, an Property leased by Great Portto  For using as its The rental was determined based 10,399,248
November 2014 ("EGL Tower  indirect wholly-owned  EGL Tours head office, car park ~ on arm's length negotiations
Lease Agreement”) subsidiary of the spaces and for rental  between the parties and is fair and
Company (i) the premises of a total gross of signage at external  reasonable, on normal commercial
Term: From 1 November 2014 floor area of approximately 44,616 wall for advertising terms and comparable to and are
to 31 October 2017 sq.ft. located at Units A&C on on terms no less favorable than the
10/F, whole floors of 12/F, 15/ prevailing market rate as confirmed
Monthly rental: HK$866,604 F & 16/F (except Unit A, 16/F), by an independent property valuer
(i) the premises located at car engaged by the Group.

park nos. P15, P18 to P23 on 2/
F, and (if) signage at external wall
of EGL Tower, 83 Hung To Road,
Kowloon, Hong Kong

040 HFHEZRAEMRAT  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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55 BAR
RERNBRRES

Name, Date and Current Term
of the Agreement and Rental

ARERGA
Transaction Party
within the Group

ANER  HERRGHR
Counter Party, Nature and
Description of the Transaction

R5EM

Transaction Purpose

EEER
Basis for Determining the
Consideration

0165258
(B7)
Consideration
for 2016 (HKS)

REBER014511B130E
A(REEEA10BRERER])

RABB : 2014511810
2017F10F318

AT 43,7008 T
Lease agreement signed on 13
November 2014 ("EGL Tower

10B Lease Agreement”)

Term: From 1 November 2014
to 31 October 2017

Monthly rental: HK$43,700
BEBEN014EI1A130%
AEFEES10AEERZ )

RHHAB 2014511810
2017107318

A 22,8007
Lease agreement signed on 13
November 2014 ("EGL Tower

16A Lease Agresment”)

Term: From 1 November 2014
to 31 October 2017

Monthly rental: HK$22,800

REE ARTZEE
PEHBAT

EGL Tours, an
indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the
Company

BRETHARAR
(@EmH ) &2
A RE2ENEAR

i-Evertravel

Company Limited
(“i-Evertravel”), an
indirect wholly-owned
Subsidiary of the
Company

NEBAETATREE

EENERBESERRERS10
BBEREAMEN2300FHER
ByiE

Property leased by Great Port to
EGL Tours

The premises of a total gross
floor area of approximately 2,300
sq.ft. located at Unit B, 10/F,
EGL Tower, 83 Hung To Road,
Kowloon, Hong Kong

MxmAETHE TRRRTH

EENEERESSEERERES16
BAZLEEARN 20075 ER
RE

Property leased by Great Port to
-Evertravel

The premises of a total gross
floor area of approximately 1,200
sq.ft. located at Unit A, 16/F,
EGL Tower, 83 Hung To Road,
Kowloon, Hong Kong

MR R

For using as its head
office

AR R

For using as its head
office

BENEEH AT HERET @ &
SERENBEUNXEEGED
AREEEATAE  HA—HE
G ERODEREATER
ROMEHRTR -

The rental was determined based
onarm's length negotiations
between the parties and is fair and
reasonable, on normal commercial
terms and comparable to and are
on terms no less favorable than the
prevailing market rate as confirmed
by an independent property valuer
engaged by the Group.

BENEEHAFHERET £
SERENEUNREERRED
EBESBATAE A -KA
R ERODEREATER
BB -

The rental was determined based
onarm's length negotiations
between the parties and is fair and
reasonable, on normal commercial
terms and comparable to and are
on terms no less favorable than the
prevailing market rate as confirmed
by an independent property valuer
engaged by the Group.
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Name, Date and Current Term
No.  of the Agreement and Rental

Ch

AEBLSH
Transaction Party
within the Group

AHEE  HERREHR
Counter Party, Nature and
Description of the Transaction

ELEL

Transaction Purpose

EEER
Basis for Determining the
Consideration

201658%
(Bm)
Consideration
for 2016 (HKS)

5 BEREN01UEN F130%
AHLAERERE])

TLHE < 2014511182
2017107318

AT 159,150/

5 Lease agreement signed on
13 November 2014 (*Chevalier
House Lease Agresment”)

Term: From 1 November 2014
to 31 October 2017

Monthly rental: HK$159,150

6  MEEHE
A% (Rl

2)

MLGEE : 2014F11A1HE
2017%10£31A

14E11R13

12
TERSHER

R 16436457

6 Two lease agreements signed
on 13 November 2014
(Collectively, the “China Plaza
Lease Agreements’)

Term for each lease; From 1
November 2014 to 31 October
2017

Aggregate monthly rental:
MOP164,364

042 EEBERERAT
A

Rl AREZRE

2EANBAT

EGL Tours, an
indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the
Company

RBERTIE (8F)

ERAA AREZH

RRENBAT

EGL Tours (Macau)
Company Limited, an
indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the
Company

MEBAETETRELE

EANERRERLHIRELAE
5812345 6ZLEEE
496,366 T HARMYE

Property leased by Great Port to
EGL Tours

The premises of a total gross floor
area of approximately 6,366 s.ft.
located at Units Nos. 1,2, 3, 4, 5,
6, 5/F of Chevalier House, 45-51
Chatham Road South, Kowloon,
Hong Kong

MEMARTE PRERRTH
(&) ARAA)

BAOBM A SH0-68%EE
E3730-8045% ()1 0BV Z2IEAE
N3 40T TEREME : (108
NELEEERL1,000F 5 ERE
W% (it TBEGNELERRRE
1150 T RREE

Property leased by Great Port
to EGL Tours (Macau) Company
Limited

(i) the premises of a total gross
floor area of approximately 3,460
sq.ft. located at Unit M, 10/F, (i
the premises of a total gross floor
area of approximately 1,000 sa.ft.
located at Unit N, 10/F, and {iii) the
premises of a total saleable floor
area of approximately 1,159 sq.ft.
located at Shop B, G/F of Nos.
730-804 Avenida da Praia Grande,
Nos. 2-6B Avenida de D Joao 1V,
Macau

EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

NHERERERRA

ThER

For using as a tea
party room and the
branch office

NHEERERFIRER

REFEHERD

For using as the
Macau office and call
centre

HENEEHLFHERET - &
SERENBEUNXLERED
EBHSBATAE A —KE
26 EROTEREATER
BmEAE -

The rental was determined based
on arm's length negotiations
between the parties and is fair and
reasonable, on normal commercial
terms and comparable to and are
on terms no less favorable than the
prevailing market rate as confirmed
by an independent property valuer
engaged by the Group.

BENEEHNFHERET - &
SERENBUNELERED
EBHSBATAE A —KE
26 ERTTEREATER
BmENE -

The rental was determined based
on arm’s length negotiations
between the parties and is fair and
reasonable, on normal commercial
terms and comparable to and are
on terms no less favorable than the
prevailing market rate as confirmed
by an independent property valuer
engaged by the Group.

1,909,800

1,909,800

1,911,225

1,911,225
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Note 1:

Great Port is a company owned by Mr. Yuen Man Ying as to
approximately 26.70%, Ms. Lee Po Fun as to approximately 0.90%, Mr.
Huen Kwok Chuen as to approximately 23.08%, Mr. Leung Shing Chiu
as to approximately 9.95%, being all of the Executive Directors. The
Executive Directors together controlled approximately 60.63% voting
power of Great Port, and therefore Great Port is an associate of the
Executive Directors under the Listing Rules.

The above CCT are included in “Rental paid to a related company
— Great Port” in the related party transactions disclosed in note
33 (a)(i) in the notes to the consolidated financial statements and
payment by the Group in respect of the Acquisition is disclosed in
note 33(a)(ii) in the notes to the consolidated financial statement.

Save as disclosed above, no other related party transactions
conducted in the Year as disclosed in note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements constitute a connected transaction or
continuing connected transaction which is required to be disclosed
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Save as disclosed above,
no transaction, arrangement or contracts of significance in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Company, its holding
company or any of their respective subsidiaries was a party and
in which a Director or an entity connected with the Director had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the Year or at any time during the Year.

Save as disclosed above, (i) no contract of significance was
entered into by, and/or subsisted between, the Company or
any of its subsidiaries with the controlling shareholder or any
of its subsidiaries during the Year; and (i) there is no contract
of significance in relation to the provision of services by the
controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries to the Group.

The Independent Non-executive Directors have reviewed the
above CCT entered into by the Group and have confirmed that
these CCT were entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual course
of business of the Group; (i) on normal commercial terms or on
terms no less favourable to the Group than terms available to
or from independent third parties; and (i) in accordance with
the relevant agreements governing them on terms that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the Company and its
shareholders as a whole.
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The Company’s external auditor was engaged to report on
the Group’s CCT in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information”,
and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). The external auditor issued its
unqualified letter containing its findings and conclusions in respect
of the transactions disclosed in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of
the Listing Rules.

The Directors confirm that the Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the Year have been
audited by BDO Limited who will retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-
appointment of BDO Limited as auditor of the Company is to be
proposed at the 2017 AGM.

By order of the Board

Yuen Man Ying
Chairman and Executive Director
Hong Kong, 23 March 2017
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The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance report
of the Company for the Year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company recognises the importance of corporate
transparency and accountability. The Company is committed in
achieving a high standard of corporate governance and leading
the Group to attain better results and improve its corporate image
with effective corporate governance procedures.

During the Year, the Board is of opinion that the Company has
complied with all the applicable code provisions as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”) contained in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by the Directors. The Company has made
a specific enquiry to all Directors regarding any non-compliance
with the Model Code.

All the Directors confirmed that they have fully complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code during the Year.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF AND DELEGATION BY THE
BOARD

The Board provides leadership, guidance and strategic decisions
to the Group’s activities and oversees its financial performances.
The Board has delegated its powers to the management for the
Group’s daily management and operations.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

According to code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
the chairman and the chief executive officer should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual. During the
Year, the role of the Chairman is performed by Mr. Yuen Man
Ying while the office of the chief executive officer of the Company
is vacated. The Board will keep reviewing the current structure of
the Group’s management from time to time and should candidate
with suitable knowledge, skill and experience be identified, the
Company will make appointment to fill the post as appropriate.

BOARD COMPOSITION

Currently, the Board comprises four Executive Directors and
three Independent Non-executive Directors. At least one of the
Independent Non-executive Directors possesses the appropriate
professional accounting qualifications and financial management
expertise, which complies with the requirements of the Listing
Rules. The Company has complied with Rules 3.10 and 3.10A
of the Listing Rules. During the Year, the number of Independent
Non-executive Directors represents more than one-third of the
Board. As such, there exists a strong independent element in the
Board, which can effectively exercise independent judgement. The
Board comprises the following Directors:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Yuen Man Ying (Chairman)
Mr. Huen Kwok Chuen

Mr. Leung Shing Chiu

Ms. Lee Po Fun

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Kim Fai
Mr. Tang Koon Hung Eric
Ms. Wong Lai Ming
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The Chairman and Executive Director, Mr. Yuen Man Ying is
the spouse of Ms. Lee Po Fun, an Executive Director. All of the
Executive Directors, namely Mr. Yuen Man Ying, Mr. Huen Kwok
Chuen, Mr. Leung Shing Chiu and Ms. Lee Po Fun, are interested
in the Company’s shares through their interest in Evergloss, the
holding company of the Company. All of the Executive Directors
have interests in the shares of Great Port, which has certain
transactions with the Group which constituted CCT of the
Company. Please refer to the “Biographical Details of Directors
and Senior Management”, “Report of the Directors — Interests in
Shares of the Associated Corporation of the Company” and “Report
of the Directors — Connected Transactions and Directors’ Interests
in Contracts” on pages 60 to 63, pages 30 to 32 and pages 38
to 44 in this annual report respectively for more details. Save as
disclosed above, the Directors have no other financial, business,
family or other material/relevant relationships with one another.

INDEPENDENCE OF
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

INDEPENDENT NON-

The Company has received from each Independent Non-executive
Directors, a written confirmation of his independence to the
Company pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all Independent Non-executive Directors to
be independent in accordance with the relevant guidelines set out
in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development courses and seminars to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills. During the Year, each of the
Directors (namely, Mr. Yuen Man Ying, Mr. Huen Kwok Chuen,
Mr. Leung Shing Chiu, Ms. Lee Po Fun, Mr. Chan Kim Fai, Mr.
Tang Koon Hung Eric and Ms. Wong Lai Ming) have participated
in appropriate continuous professional development activities
by ways of attending trainings, reading materials or conducting
academic research relevant to (i) the Company’s business
operation; (i) directors’ duties and responsibilities; and (iii) the
Securities and Futures Ordinance.
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APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service
agreement with the Company on 13 November 2014 for a term
of three years commencing from 28 November 2014. Each of
the Independent Non-executive Directors was appointed to the
Board pursuant to the respective letters of appointment dated
13 November 2014 for an initial term of three years commencing
from 28 November 2014.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and
removal of the Directors are governed by the Articles. The Articles
provides that any director appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy in the Board shall hold office only until the first general
meeting of the Company after his appointment and shall then be
eligible for re-election at such meeting. Any Director appointed
by the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold
office only until the next following annual general meeting of the
Company (“AGM”) and shall then be eligible for re-election.

In accordance with the Articles, at each AGM, one-third of the
Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not three or a
multiple of three, then the number nearest to, but not less than,
one-third) shall retire from office by rotation at least once every
three years. A retiring director shall be eligible for re-election. Any
Director who has not been subject to retirement by rotation in
the three years preceding an AGM shall retire by rotation at such
meeting. Any further Directors so to retire shall be those who have
been longest in office since their last re-election or appointment
and so that as between persons who became or were last re-
elected Directors on the same day those to retire shall (unless
they otherwise agree among themselves) be determined by lot.

Accordingly, three Directors, namely, Mr. Yuen Man Ying,
Mr. Huen Kwok Chuen and Mr. Chan Kim Fai shall retire at the
2017 AGM. All of the retiring Directors, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the same meeting.
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BOARD MEETING

The Board meets regularly to discuss and formulate the overall
strategy as well as the operation and financial performance of
the Group. Directors may participate either in person or through
electronic means of communications.

Pursuant to the CG Code provision A.1.1, the Board should meet
regularly and board meetings should be held at least four times a
year.

If a director has a conflict of interest in a matter to be considered
by the Board which the Board has determined to be material, the
Director shall abstain from voting on the relevant resolutions and
he/she shall not be counted as a quorum in the Board meeting
discussing the matter concerned.

ATTENDANCE RECORD OF MEETINGS

Set out below are details of the attendance record of each
Director at the Board meetings, committee meetings and general
meetings of the Company held during the Year:

i/ BITERRE
Attendance/Number of Meetings Held
B Rk EE RE g
RRAE E5283 ZE883E ZE98% ZB883F ZEg88%
Risk
Audit Management Nomination Remuneration
General Board Committee = Committee = Committee Committee
Meetings  Meetings  Meetings Meetings Meeting Meetings
WITES Executive Directors
RXHEHE Mr. Yuen Man Ying 2/2 77 - - 1/1 1/1
BEEEE Mr. Huen Kwok Chuen 2/2 7/7 - - - ~
RS R A Mr. Leung Shing Chiu 2/2 77 - 2/2 - -
FEFULL Ms. Lee Po Fun 2/2 7/7 - - 11 11
B IFITESE  Independent Non-executive
Directors
RiRIESL AL Mr. Chan Kim Fai 2/2 77 3/3 2/2 1/1 1/1
W E Mr. Tang Koon Hung Eric 2/2 77 3/3 2/2 1/1 1/1
HEBEHLT Ms. Wong Lai Ming 2/2 77 3/3 2/2 1/1 11
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THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

An AGM is an important forum in which the management of the
Company can engage with the shareholders. The most recent
AGM was held on 27 May 2016 (“2016 AGM”).

At the 2016 AGM, all Directors in office on the meeting date,
including the Chairman of the Board and all the chairmen and
members of the Board Committees, attended the meeting along
with senior management and the external auditor. At the 2016
AGM, separate resolutions were proposed for each issue and
were voted on by poll. The procedures for conducting a poll were
explained at the meeting prior to the polls being taken.

The voting results are available on the websites of the Company
and of the Stock Exchange.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the Audit Committee, the Risk
Management Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee. All the Board Committees perform
their distinct roles in accordance with their respective terms of
reference which are available to shareholders on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange. The Board Committees
are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties
and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expense.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established on 13 November 2014,
The existing terms of reference were adopted by the Board
on 31 December 2015 in compliance with the CG Code. The
Audit Committee comprises a total of three members, all being
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Chan Kim Fai
(Chairman), Mr. Tang Koon Hung Eric and Ms. Wong Lai Ming.



i A N/

TEERERME
Corporate Governance Report

ERZBENIBZRERR(AFEE) (BRAKEN
MBEER (NERAEEEESNEZ AN RIE (i)
EEARRAPBHREFR - BREIERARBEZERLR
(V) HlE REMARMERREERE M LR RIRER
EEEABRRNER

RAFE  BERZESBTTIRNGH - WA AE
ZEE - ARANBERER S ARRNEERRA
MBRRLERESTSHELE - WHERREERE
FeFLHBEE  HEREMZEE -

S A O

ERERREE
EEeLAEREESRTCEE B - BRZEE
REEERBENEEHNEZZEGNBREEENR -
RAEE  BERZEERIARAFTNEEESHERS
B EBEREREBENSIEHEZEETRAREAR
AESTSTRIEENR - AR AR BEESRERNHRE

EREELZEZ

B EREEZ EERN2014F11 B13H K » WHIFTHEA
REMBESE - ARTIEZE S H4ZKEAK
EP1RRNITES  BIRNEEE - SBRBUIERNITE
£ IEREELEAE(ER) Ol tEREBRL T -
At - KERI D EBBILIENTES -

RREEZEENTIEREBERMNARFLERRE
BRE - BRReHEMREREENES - BRKIEF R
AR B IR REM B ARIE

The primary responsibilities of the Audit Committee include,
among others, (i) reviewing financial information of the Group; (ii)
monitoring of the relationship between the Group and its external
auditors; (iii) overseeing the Company’s financial reporting system,
risk management and internal control systems; and (iv) developing
and reviewing the policies and practices on corporate governance
with legal and regulatory requirements and requirements under
the Listing Rules.

During the Year, three meetings of the Audit Committee were
held to review the internal control systems, the Company’s
CCT, the Company’s results and consolidated financial
statements for submission to the Board for approval and to make
recommendations to the Board on the re-appointment of auditor,
approve the engagement letter of the auditor.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Audit Committee has been appointed by the Board to perform
the corporate governance function. The responsibilities of audit
committee on corporate governance function are set out in the
terms of reference of the Audit Committee. During the Year, the
Audit Committee reviewed the Company’s corporate governance
policies and practices, training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and the senior management and
the Company’s compliance with the code and disclosure in this
Corporate Governance Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Risk Management Committee was established on 13
November 2014, with specific written terms of reference. The
Risk Management Committee comprises a total of four members,
being one Executive Director, namely, Mr. Leung Shing Chiu, and
three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Chan
Kim Fai (Chairman), Mr. Tang Koon Hung Eric and Ms. Wong Lai
Ming. Accordingly, a majority of the members are Independent
Non-executive Directors.

The primary responsibilities of the Risk Management Committee
include reviewing the Company’s enterprise risk management
framework, and the guidelines, policies and procedures for risk
assessment and risk management and reviewing the effectiveness
of the risk management function.
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During the Year, two meetings of the Risk Management
Committee were held to review internal control of the Group
and review the Company’s high-level related risks and key
emerging risks and the controls in place to mitigate such
risks, review the Company’s surplus cash management, and
provide recommendation to improve the Company’s surplus
cash management for the Year for submission to the Board for
approval.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 13 November
2014, with specific written terms of reference in compliance with
the CG Code. The Nomination Committee comprises a total of
five members, being two Executive Directors, namely, Mr. Yuen
Man Ying (Chairman) and Ms. Lee Po Fun, and three Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Chan Kim Fai, Mr. Tang
Koon Hung Eric and Ms. Wong Lai Ming. Accordingly, a majority
of the members are Independent Non-executive Directors.

The primary responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board and making
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy and assessing the
independence of the Independent Non-executive Directors.

During the Year, a meeting of the Nomination Committee was
held to review the structure, size, composition and diversity of the
Board and assessing the independence of the Independent Non-
Executive Directors.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 13 November
2014, with specific written terms of reference in compliance with
the CG Code. The Remuneration Committee comprises a total of
five members, being two Executive Directors, namely, Mr. Yuen
Man Ying and Ms. Lee Po Fun, and three Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Chan Kim Fai, Mr. Tang Koon
Hung Eric (Chairman) and Ms. Wong Lai Ming. Accordingly, a
majority of the members are Independent Non-executive Directors.
The primary responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
include, among others, (i) making recommendations to the Board
on the policy and structure for all remuneration of the Directors
and senior management and on the establishment of a set of
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formal and transparent procedures for developing policies on
such remuneration; (i) reviewing and approving the management’s
remuneration proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate
goals and objectives; and (iiij making recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration packages of Executive Directors and
members of senior management. During the Year, a meeting of
the Remuneration Committee was held to review the remuneration
package of the individual Executive Directors and senior
management for submission to the Board for approval.

REMUNERATION OF THE MEMBERS OF THE SENIOR
MANAGEMENT BY BAND

Pursuant to Code Provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, details of the
annual remuneration of the senior management of the Company
then in office by band for the Year are as follows:

A

Number of

A B Remuneration band individuals
£ 21,000,000% 7T Nil to HK$1,000,000 1
1,000,001/&7C £ 2,000,000/ 7T HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1

BEEAFENHFIF SN GRS M BRRM T2

EEESTILER
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ZEXEZTTHRAANRARREREGRS - BB
EEZHEAZRAERESENEZ T RERAERRE
BRBRRER - Fik - XEESRER  ARBES
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HEOERERBAREST RA - ZEAERIZEEE
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Details of the remuneration of each Director for the Year are set
out in note 12 to the consolidated financial statements.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has established a board diversity policy. The Company
recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board
to enhance the quality of its performance. Diversity of Board
members can be achieved through consideration of a number
of factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
background and ethnicity, in addition to educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
All the Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against appropriate criteria, having
due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.
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NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

Each of Evergloss, Likang, Kwok Lai, Mr. Yuen Man Ying, Mr.
Huen Kwok Chuen, Mr. Leung Shing Chiu and Ms. Lee Po Fun
has provided annual confirmations in respect of the compliance
with non-competition undertakings (“Undertakings”) given by them
in favour of the Company pursuant to a deed of non competition
undertakings dated 13 November 2014. The Independent Non-
executive Directors have also reviewed the compliance by each
of Evergloss, Likang, Kwok Lai, Mr. Yuen Man Ying, Mr. Huen
Kwok Chuen, Mr. Leung Shing Chiu and Ms. Lee Po Fun with the
Undertakings during the Year. The Independent Non-executive
Directors have confirmed that, as far as they can ascertain, there
is no breach by any of Evergloss, Likang, Kwok Lai, Mr. Yuen
Man Ying, Mr. Huen Kwok Chuen, Mr. Leung Shing Chiu and Ms.
Lee Po Fun of the Undertakings given by them.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the Year, the remunerations paid or payable to the external
auditors in respect of its audit services and non-audit services
provided to the Group were approximately HK$1.4 million and
HK$1.0 million, respectively. The non-audit services consist
of professional fees in respect of acquiring Ebisu Growth of
approximately HK$0.6 million and taxation and other services of
approximately HK$0.4 million.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY
IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company and of the Group for the
Year. The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. The
statement of the independent auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in
the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 64 to 69.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
SYSTEMS

The Board is responsible for maintaining and reviewing the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems. The Board recognises that the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems play a key role in
the identification, evaluation and management of risks faced by
the Group, the assurance of continued compliance with laws
and regulations by the Group, and the provision of reasonable
assurance on the Group against material misstatement, error, loss
or fraud. The Board appreciates that the Group is exposed to
risks in achieving its business objectives and strives to maintain
such risks at acceptable level through the design, implementation
and monitoring of effective risk management and internal control
systems.

The risk management and internal control systems are established
within the Company and its subsidiaries for facilitating effective
and efficient operations, for safeguarding assets against
unauthorised use, for maintaining proper accounting records, for
ensuring the reliability of financial reporting and information, and
for ensuring compliance with applicable laws and regulations.
These systems are designed to meet the Group’s particular
needs and to minimise the risks to which the Group is exposed,
and are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risks
to achieve business objectives and by their nature, can only
provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against material
misstatements or losses.

The key elements of the Company’s risk management and
internal control systems include the assessment and evaluation
of risks, the development and continuous updating of responsive
procedures, and the ongoing testing of internal control procedures
to ensure their effectiveness.

An ongoing risk management approach is also adopted by the
Company for identifying and assessing the key inherent risks that
affect the achievements of its objectives.
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EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

the Board,
and Risk Management Committee,

through the Audit Committee
reviewed the continued

During the Year,

effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems covering all material aspect of controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls. The review covered
the following areas:

— foreign exchange risk management
— surplus cash management

During the Year, the Company also engaged an independent
professional consultant to conduct an annual review on the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
controls systems. The review covered the following items within
the Group:

— system post-implementation review on information technology,
revenue and receivable, expenditure and payable

— human resources and payroll

— oversea investment management

Relevant applicable recommendations made by the consultant
during the Year have already been implemented in stages by the
Group to further enhance its internal control policies, procedures
and practices.

As a result of the above review, the Board is satisfied that the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems are
adequate and effective and have complied with the CG Code
provisions on internal control throughout the Year and the
Company has an internal audit function.
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PROCEDURES AND INTERNAL CONTROLS FOR
THE HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE
INFORMATION

With respect to the procedures and internal controls for the
handling and dissemination of inside information, the Group
conducts its affairs with close attention to the inside information
provisions under the Securities and Futures Ordinance and
the Listing Rules. The Directors and senior managements are
responsible for determining whether any particular information is
inside information and overseeing and coordinating disclosure
of inside information of the Group. They are also responsible for
taking reasonable measures to ensure that proper safeguards
exist to prevent a breach of a disclosure requirement in relation
to the Group from time to time and that disclosures are made
and/or announcements are published on a timely basis in
accordance with the applicable laws and regulations, and before
such information is fully disclosed to the public, they shall ensure
the same is kept strictly confidential. The Directors are also
committed to ensure that information contained in announcements
are not false or misleading as to a material fact, or false or
misleading through the omission of a material fact in view of
presenting information in a clear and balanced way.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The role of the company secretary of the Company (“Company
Secretary”) is performed by Ms. Wong Cheuk Yee Kathy. The
Company Secretary is an employee of the Company and is
appointed by the Board. The Company Secretary is responsible
for facilitating the Board’s processes and communications among
Board members, with shareholders and with management.
The Company Secretary received at least 15 hours of relevant
professional training to update her skills and knowledge in the
Year.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communications between the shareholders and the Board. An
AGM of the Company shall be held in each year and at the place
as may be determined by the Board.
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SHAREHOLDERS TO CONVENE AN
EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING (“EGM”)

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles, EGM shall be convened
on the requisition of one or more shareholders of the Company
holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company having the right
of voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall be made
in writing to the Board or the Company Secretary at the head
office of the Company in Hong Kong, which is presently situated
at 15/F, EGL Tower, 83 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon,
Hong Kong, for the purpose of requiring an EGM to be called by
the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition and signed by the requisitionist(s). If within 21 days
of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in
the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

PUTTING ENQUIRIES BY SHAREHOLDERS TO
THE BOARD

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company for the
attention of the Company Secretary at the Company’s head office
in Hong Kong.

PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD
PROPOSALS BY SHAREHOLDERS AT
SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING

Shareholders are requested to follow Article 64 of the Articles
for putting forward a resolution at an EGM. The requirements
and procedures are set out above in the paragraph headed
“Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary General Meeting”.
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EEYHENEXRET SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN CONSTITUTIONAL
DOCUMENTS

RAREE - SIEEANATINELESEAERME/EHE  No amendment has been made to the Company’s constitutional

&3] documents during the Year.

AREEEAW By order of the Board

FEFRNTEE Yuen Man Ying

RN Chairman and Executive Director

201743 H23H 23 March 2017
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DIRECTORS

Mr. Yuen, Man Ying (“Mr. Yuen”), aged 65 is the founder of
the Group and was appointed as the Chairman and an Executive
Director of the Company on 24 July 2014. Mr. Yuen joined the
Group in 1987. Mr. Yuen is the chairman of the Nomination
Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee of the
Board. Mr. Yuen serves as the managing director of EGL Tours
Company Limited (“EGL Tours”) and as a director of EGL Tours,
EGL Tours (Japan) Company Limited (“EGL Japan”), EGL Tours
(Macau) Company Limited (“EGL Macau”), i-Evertravel Company
Limited (“i-Evertravel”), EGL Management Group Company
Limited (“EGL Management”), EGL Holdings (Nippon) Limited
(“EGL Nippon”), EGL Holdings (Asia) Limited (“EGL Asia”), EGL
Investment Group Company Limited (“EGL Investment”) and
EGL Investment (China) Company Limited (“EGL China”). He
is responsible for major decision making, itinerary planning for
tours to Japan, promoting the Japanese market, supervising and
training tour escorts and planning air charter of the Group. Mr.
Yuen has over 30 years of extensive knowledge and experience in
the tourism industry. Mr. Yuen is the spouse of Ms. Lee Po Fun,
an Executive Director of the Company.

Mr. Huen, Kwok Chuen (“Mr. Huen”), aged 59, was appointed
as an Executive Director of the Company on 24 July 2014,
Mr. Huen joined the Group in 1987. Mr. Huen also serves as a
director of EGL Tours, EGL Japan, EGL Macau, i-Evertravel, EGL
Management, EGL Nippon, EGL Asia, EGL Investment and EGL
China and the spokesman of the Group. He is responsible for
overseeing development, public relations, specialised gourmet
tours and the Macau subsidiary of the Group. Mr. Huen has over
30 years of extensive knowledge and experience in the tourism
industry.

Mr. Leung, Shing Chiu (“Mr. Leung”), aged 62, was appointed
as an Executive Director of the Company on 24 July 2014. Mr.
Leung joined the Group in 1988. Mr. Leung is a member of the
Risk Management Committee of the Board. Mr. Leung also serves
as a director of EGL Tours, EGL Japan, EGL Macau, i-Evertravel,
EGL Management, EGL Nippon, EGL Asia, EGL Investment and
EGL China. He is responsible for managing the receiving services
for outbound tours in Japan, frontline sales, customer services,
accounting and administration matters of the Group. Mr. Leung
has over 30 years of extensive knowledge and experience in the
tourism industry.
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Ms. Lee, Po Fun (“Mrs. Yuen”), aged 58, was appointed as
an Executive Director of the Company on 24 July 2014. Mrs.
Yuen is a member of the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee of the Board. Mrs. Yuen joined the
Group in 1987. Mrs. Yuen also serves as a director of EGL
Tours, EGL Japan, EGL Macau, i-Evertravel, EGL Management,
EGL Nippon, EGL Asia, EGL Investment and EGL China. She is
responsible for overseeing the information technology department,
human resources development, outbound tour services and the
overall operations of the Group. Mrs. Yuen has over 30 years
of extensive knowledge and experience in the tourism industry.
Mrs. Yuen is the spouse of Mr. Yuen Man Ying, the Chairman
and an Executive Director of the Company. Mrs Yuen is also the
Chairman of the board of directors of the Christian organisation,
the Oaks.

Mr. Chan, Kim Fai (“Mr. Chan”), aged 58, was appointed
as an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
on 13 November 2014. Mr. Chan is the chairman of the Audit
Committee and Risk Management Committee and a member of
the Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the
Board. Mr. Chan is responsible for overseeing the management
of the Group independently. Mr. Chan is currently an independent
non-executive director of Magnificent Hotel Investments Limited,
Shun Ho Property Investments Limited and Shun Ho Holdings
Limited (all these three companies are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange). Mr. Chan has also served as the
sole proprietor of lvan Chan & Co, CPA since 2001. Mr. Chan
is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and CPA Australia.

Ms. Wong, Lai Ming (“Ms. Wong”), aged 58, was appointed
as an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on
13 November 2014. She is a member of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and Risk
Management Committee of the Board. She is responsible for
overseeing the management of the Group independently. Ms.
Wong has over 20 years of experience in the legal industry.
She is currently Of Counsel of King & Wood Mallesons, Beijing
office. Ms. Wong is a practicing lawyer in the PRC and is a non-
practising solicitor in Hong Kong.
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Mr. Tang, Koon Hung, Eric (“Mr. Tang”), aged 71, was
appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company on 13 November 2014. He is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit Committee,
Nomination Committee and Risk Management Committee of
the Board. He is responsible for overseeing the management of
the Group independently. He is currently an independent non-
executive director of ASM Pacific Technology Ltd. (a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange). Mr. Tang was
qualified a Chartered Accountant in Canada and is a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Cheang, Chuen Hon (“Mr. Cheang”), aged 52, was
appointed as the financial controller of the Group on 1 April 2004.
He is responsible for supervision and management of the Group’s
financial issues. He joined the Group in June 2001 as a finance
manager before being promoted as the financial controller of EGL
Tours in April 2004.

Mr. Cheang has over 25 years of extensive accounting and
financial experience, in which 10 years in another public listed
company (whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange), with latest position as accounting manager.

Mr. Cheang graduated from the University of Hong Kong with a
bachelor degree in social sciences in November 1988 and later
obtained a master degree of science in accountancy from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University in November 2001. Mr. Cheang
is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and a Certified Finance and Treasury
Professional Senior of the Finance and Treasury Association
Limited.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Wong, Cheuk Yee Kathy (“Ms. Wong”), aged 55, was
appointed as the company secretary of the Company on 28
August 2014. She is responsible for the company secretarial
matters of the Group. Ms. Wong has been the company secretary
of EGL Tours since September 2006, being responsible for its
general company secretarial affairs. Ms. Wong has over 30 years
of experience in the accounting, audit and tax industry.

Ms. Wong received a diploma in accounting from the Hong Kong
Shue Yan College in July 1984 and a bachelor of law degree from
Peking University through long distance learning in July 1996.
Ms. Wong is a Certified Public Accountant (Practising) in Hong
Kong and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY
LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of EGL
Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 70 to 156, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2016, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2016, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Revenue recognition and associated customer deposits
received

(refer to notes 4(k) on the significant accounting policies, 7
and 24 to the consolidated financial statements)

The Group’s income from provision of package tours is
recognised when the services are rendered by the Group.

Income from provision of ancillary travel related services, sales
of air tickets, hotel accommodation and hotel packages is
recognised when the services are rendered by the Group as an
agent on a net basis. Where the Group acts as a principal in
certain transactions, including sales of tickets and merchandise,
revenue is recognised upon transfer of the significant risks and
rewards of ownership to the customer. This is usually taken as
the time when the tickets and merchandise are delivered and the
customer has accepted the tickets and merchandise.

During the year, the Group recorded revenue derived from the
above services provided and products sold of approximately
HK$1,680,232,000 (2015: HK$1,858,341,000). As at 31
December 2016, the Group had customer deposits received of
approximately HK$136,981,000 (2015: HK$127,779,000).

We have identified revenue recognition as a key audit matter
because revenue is one of the key performance indicators of
the Group and because it involves highly customised information
technology systems to record the transactions and certain manual
procedures to determine the appropriate recognition point, all of
which give rise to an inherent risk that revenue could be recorded
in the incorrect period or could be subject to manipulation.

In addition, inappropriate recognition of revenue could result in
misstatement of the customer deposits received as recorded at
the reporting date.
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Revenue recognition and associated customer deposits
received (Continued)

Our Response

Our procedures in relation to this key audit matter included:

= Performing review of overall information technology general
controls and application controls;

- Performing test of controls and substantive testing on
revenue cycle;

- Conducting analytical procedures on revenue;

- Scrutinising manual journals related to revenue to assess the
timing of revenues recorded; and

- Testing on sampling basis on the customer deposits
received as at the reporting date by tracing the receipts to
the supporting documents and reviewing the recognition of
revenue in the subsequent reporting period in accordance
with the respective recognition policies of the respective
services provided or products sold.

Other Information in the Annual Report

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information in the Company’s annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.
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Directors’ Responsibilities for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the
directors in discharging their responsibility in this regard.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’'s report that includes our opinion. This report
is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with the terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

= identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control;

- obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control;

— evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors;

— conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern;

- evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation; and
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

- obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Lam Hung Yun, Andrew

Practising Certificate Number P04092

Hong Kong, 23 March 2017

2016F F#,  Annual Report 2016 069



Bt 7§ ¥R &R FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e Bm kEMmEEK S
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
HZE2016%F12A31HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

2016 2015

iz FH&T FHIT

Notes HK$°000 HK$’000

U5 Revenue 7 1,680,232 1,858,341

SHEE AR Cost of sales (1,416,309) (1,423,590)

EF| Gross profit 263,923 434,751

Hi A RME (E18)F5  Other income and gain/(loss), net 7 10,038 1,111
PTESRITAB IR Net realised loss on

BT derivative financial instruments - (131)
HEMX Selling expenses (98,960) (105,069)
TH X Administrative expenses (155,415) (156,460)
NS S Share of results of associates,

BIEZE WK including bargain gain on acquisition 3,462 1,485
& KA Finance costs 8 _ _
KRS B ADE A Profit before income tax 8 23,048 175,687
FriSHif X Income tax expense 9 (3,714) (25,253)
FE&H Profit for the year 19,334 150,434
HEUEHIEEEEMN Other comprehensive income,

Hih2mEE - that may be reclassified subsequently

to profit or loss:
BMEGINEBHEL =R Exchange differences on translation of

foreign operations (5,949) (85)
JE(IRE BN R A Share of exchange differences on

HEH ZER translation of foreign associates (177) (83)
FEHEMEEKE Other comprehensive income for the year,

MBRTIE net of tax (6,126) (168)
FEZHEWRLERE Total comprehensive income for the year 13,208 150,266
U AL EEERERER : Profit for the year attributable to:

PA/NEIEZ 2= DN Owners of the Company 18,670 150,469
FEIEAR M B Non-controlling interests 664 (35)
19,334 150,434
LUTALTEEREWZEEE : Total comprehensive income attributable to:
RARHEEA Owners of the Company 12,487 150,333
FEPERR M Non-controlling interests 721 67)
13,208 150,266
RRA BB AEGEEF Earnings per share for profit attributable
ZBREF to owners of the Company
—EARREE(E) — Basic and diluted (HK cents) 10 3.72 29.95
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
2016128318 As at 31 December 2016

2016 2015
HtaF F#Bx THT
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
BEERERE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
FRBEE Non-current assets
ME - BE RERE Property, plant and equipment 14 147,059 12,117
EEIR Construction in progress 15 39,466 -
NN Interests in associates 16 9,418 2,467
BRI EE Deferred tax asset 17 1,189 395
H b R AR Other receivable 20 3,123 =
200,255 14,979
RBEE Current assets
FE Inventories 18 16,232 7,300
B S AR Trade receivables 19 2,224 1,710
&~ TR R E AL EUER Deposits, prepayments and other receivables 20 123,149 121,678
FE U FAE A Bl BR IR Amount due from a related company 21 2,656 2,503
JrE S Bs B BR IR Amount due from an associate 16(c) 4,703 834
KRR TIFER Pledged bank deposits 22 22,461 21,965
WRITERREFER S Cash at banks and on hand 22 260,876 453,145
432,301 609,135
nREBEE Current liabilities
2 ZEMNER Trade payables 23 48,220 52,087
FEETRIE C EWET Accruals, deposits received and
Ko EoAth A~ BR other payables 24 188,576 194,866
FETESE & A RIBR X Amounts due to associates 16(c) 4,899 4,594
TRIa R s Provision for taxation 11,386 11,544
253,081 263,041
RBEEFE Net current assets 179,220 346,094
BEERABERE Total assets less current liabilities 379,475 361,073
2016F %  Annual Report 2016 Q71
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
R20165FE12A31H As at 31 December 2016

2016 2015
HfaF FH&T THIT
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
FnBAE Non-current liabilities
SRITIER Bank borrowings 25 53,287 -
BRI IBE & Deferred tax liabilities 17 2,483 -
55,770 -
EERE Net assets 323,705 361,073
= EQUITY
RATEBA Capital and reserves attributable to
EihERREE owners of the Company
ik Share capital 26 50,245 50,245
HiE Reserves 27 270,875 308,964
321,120 359,209
JEIERR S Non-controlling interests 32 2,585 1,864
A EE Total equity 323,705 361,073
REES=E On behalf of the Board of Directors
RN K 2 K
Yuen Man Ying Leung Shing Chiu
WITES HITES

Executive Director
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Consolldated Statement of Changes in Equity

#HZE20169F12A31H For the year ended 31 December 2016

'Aﬂ/\

N

NG N
Attributable to owners of the Company
R RVEE AfREE AERE NERE RERAF Bt FERER  BRAE
Foreign Non-
Share Share  Merger  Statutory exchange  Retained controlling Total
capital premium*  reserve®  reserve*  reserve®  earnings* Total interests equity
Thr TEr Tt TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TET  TER
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
R2015%1A1R At 1 January 2015 50245 145335  (57,889) 872 9 95,433 233,999 - 23399
FERT Profit for the year - - - - - 150469 150,469 (35) 150,434
A2 a4 Other comprehensive income
BEENBOELZE Exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations = = = = (63) = (63) (32) 89)
g g Ve N Share of exchange differences on translation
BiEE of foreign associates = - - - 83 _ 83) - )
EERANREE Total comprehensive income for the year = = - - (136) 150469 150,333 (67) 150,266
ARNBNREED Non-controling interests arising from
ERER formation of subsidaries - - - - - - - 1931 1931
EREREHd11) Interim dividends paid (nofe 11) - - - - - (5129 (25129 - (519
R2015512431R At 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016
R2016%1518 50,245 145335  (57,883) 872 (139) 220,779 359,209 1,864 361,073
EERA Profit for the year - - - - - 18,670 18,670 664 19,334
A2 E4e Other comprehensive income
HERNEBNELZE Exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations - - - - (6,006) - (6,006) 57 (5,949)
AL BENTR Share of exchange differences on translation
EfZE of foreign associates - - - - {177) - (177) - {177)
EERANRES Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - (6183) 18670 12,487 71 13,208
mEREH TOEEAH Difference arising from combination of
FEENER business under common control - - (331) - - - (331) - (381)
ERRERE HE11) Final dividends paid (note 11) - - - - - (50,245  (50,245) - (50,245)
R2016%128318 At 31 December 2016 50,245 145335  (58,214) 872 (6,322) 189,204 321,120 2,585 328,705
* ZERBAEASEAMBERARPIFHE] - The total of these accounts represents “Reserves” in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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Consolldated Statement of Cash Flows

HZE2016%F12831H IEF[Z For the year ended 31 December 2016

2016 2015
Hiat FEIT FA&T
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
RETHEENRERE Cash flows from operating activities
R T 5 55 Al ) Profit before income tax 23,048 175,687
KR Adjustments for:

FEWA Interest income (1,443) (1,464)

TESFH & SR 5H Amortisation of prepaid lease payments - 1,276

B S EWER Bad debts written off in respect of

HEE R AR trade receivables 49 _

Yz - BE Rk Depreciation on property, plant and

HETE equipment 7,725 4,387
HEME - WE K& Gain on disposal of property, plant and
AW A FRR equipment, net ) -
iy NS e Share of results of associates (3,462) (1,485)
TTESRmIEAEAREBE Change in fair value of derivative
HE) R financial instruments, net - (170)
LBEAEREEATH Operating profit before working capital

R E changes 25,914 178,231
FE®En Increase in inventories (8,932) (3,678)
2 Z EWERIE N Increase in trade receivables (563) (225)
A& EAEK Increase in deposits, prepayments and

Ho{th fE U BR 18 0 other receivables (5,265) (12,398)
JE W B 38 A R BR R IE AN Increase in amount due from a

related company (153) -
JFE Wi i ) R BRRAG AN Increase in amount due from an associate (3,869) (834)
B Z MR Decrease in trade payables (3,817) (1,649)
FEETERIE ~ BEWET & & (Decrease)/increase in accruals,

Hith N ER OR L) 180 deposits received and other payables (6,457) 10,496
eSS 2 N B BR FRAE 0 Increase in amounts due to associates 305 4,594
EE(FA)/EEXNES Cash (used in)/generated from operations (2,837) 174,537
B PTEH Income tax paid (2,185) (15,552)
AT (AT ) EAER Net cash (used in)/generated from operating

B )FH activities (5,022) 158,985

074 EEBERERAT

g

EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED



/\/T\ E/Eu k57 //|L£i§

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HZE2016F12A31H ILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

2016 2015
Hta FE T FAT
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
RETBEENRENRE Cash flows from investing activities
BEYE  MENKE Purchase of property, plant and equipment (21,842) (7,299)
HEME  BEKR Proceeds from disposal of property, plant
F A PTG I8 and equipment 37 _
TERETRER Payment for construction in progress (85,633) -
SWEER B AR E Payment for consideration of acquisition of a
subsidiary (124,500) =
EIFERI TR (38 00), R (Increase)/decrease in pledged bank deposits (496) 74
JREIEAE A =1EH A L&Y Increase in fixed deposits with original
F HiTZ 032 A0 maturity over three months (9,463) -
g NS P N L NS Acquisition of an associate/Capital injection
FEM A SR E & E = A R into associates upon incorporation (3,666) (1,065)
= U B Interest received 1,631 1,317
2B E B AT B 2 ) F RE Net cash used in investing activities (193,932) (6,973)
RETBEENRERE Cash flows from financing activities
AT S Dividends paid (50,245) (25,123)
FAHT B A R S FFAY Contributions from non-controlling interests
IR ST upon incorporation of subsidiaries = 1,931
RITIEKFTS 5KIE Proceeds from bank borrowings 53,743 =
ERFE Interest paid (74) _
BETEESL(BH) Net cash generated from/(used in)
IR 2 FEE financing activities 3,424 (23,192)
BeERBLSEEYORD),/ Net (decrease)/increase in cash and
o) IpE L] cash equivalents (195,530) 128,820
INEEPE R B B Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (6,202) (53)
FORERESEEY Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of the year 453,145 324,378
ERBERBFESEEY Cash and cash equivalents at end
of the year 22 251,413 453,145
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2016%F12A31HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

1.
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1.

GENERAL

EGL Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 24 July 2014 as
an exempted company with limited liability. The address
of its registered office is Clifton House, 75 Fort Street, PO
Box 1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands. Its
principal place of business is located at 15/F, EGL Tower,
83 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The Company’s shares were listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 28 November 2014.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding
and the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in
note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Company’s immediate and ultimate holding company
is Evergloss Management Group Company Limited,
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”).

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2016 were approved by the board of directors on
23 March 2017.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(@) Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs -
effective 1 January 2016

In the current year, the Company and its subsidiaries
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”) have
applied for the first time the following new or amended
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”), which are relevant
to and effective for the Group’s financial statements for
annual periods beginning on 1 January 2016:

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements

2012-2014 Cycle
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative
Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HZE2016F12A31H ILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016
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ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

(@)

Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs -
effective 1 January 2016 (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 — Disclosure Initiative

The amendments are designed to encourage entities
to use judgement in the application of HKAS 1 when
considering the layout and content of their financial
statements.

Included in the clarifications is that an entity’s
share of other comprehensive income from equity
accounted interests in associates and joint ventures
is split between those items that will and will not
be reclassified to profit or loss, and presented in
aggregate as a single line item within those two
groups.

The adoption of the amendments has no impact on
these financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 27 — Equity Method in
Separate Financial Statements

The amendments allow an entity to apply the
equity method in accounting for its investments in
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in its
separate financial statements. The amendments are
applied retrospectively in accordance with HKAS 8.

The adoption of the amendments has no impact on
these financial statements as the Company has not
elected to apply the equity method in its separate
financial statements.
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

(b)

New or amended HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective

The following new or amended HKFRSs, potentially
relevant to the Group’s financial statements, have been
issued, but are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group:

Amendments to HKAS 7
Amendments to HKAS 12

Disclosure Initiative'

Recognition of Deferred
Tax Assets for Unrealised
Losses’

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and
Measurement of Share-

Based Payment

Transactions?
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments?
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with

Customers?
Amendments to HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with

Customers (Clarifications to

HKFRS 15)2
HKFRS 16 Leases®
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture*

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2017

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2018

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2019

4 The amendments were originally intended to

be effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2016. The effective date has now
been deferred/removed. Early application of
the amendments continue to be permitted.
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

(b)

New or amended HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 7 — Disclosure Initiative

The amendments introduce an additional disclosure
that will enable users of financial statements to
evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities.

Amendments to HKAS 12 — Recognition of Deferred
Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses

The amendments relate to the recognition of deferred
tax assets and clarify some of the necessary
considerations, including how to account for deferred
tax assets related to debt instruments measured at fair
value.

Amendments to HKFRS 2 — Classification and
Measurement of Share-Based Payment Transactions

The amendments provide requirements on the
accounting for the effects of vesting and non-vesting
conditions on the measurement of cash-settled share-
based payments; share-based payment transactions
with a net settlement feature for withholding tax
obligations; and a modification to the terms and
conditions of a share-based payment that changes the
classification of the transaction from cash-settled to
equity-settled.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 — Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify the extent of gains or losses
to be recognised when an entity sells or contributes
assets to its associate or joint venture. When the
transaction involves a business the gain or loss is
recognised in full, conversely when the transaction
involves assets that do not constitute a business the
gain or loss is recognised only to the extent of the
unrelated investors’ interests in the joint venture or
associate.
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

(b) New or amended HKFRSs that have been

issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 — Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture (Continued)

Except as described below, the directors of the
Company anticipate that the application of the above
new or amended HKFRSs will have no material impact
on the consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets.
Debt instruments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to hold assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows (the business model
test) and that have contractual terms that give rise
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding (the
contractual cash flow characteristics test) are generally
measured at amortised cost. Debt instruments that
meet the contractual cash flow characteristics test are
measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVTOCI”) if the objective of the entity’s
business model is both to hold and collect the
contractual cash flows and to sell the financial assets.
Entities may make an irrevocable election at initial
recognition to measure equity instruments that are not
held for trading at FVTOCI. All other debt and equity
instruments are measured at fair value through profit
or loss (“FVTPL”).

HKFRS 9 includes a new expected loss impairment
model for all financial assets not measured at FVTPL
replacing the incurred loss model in HKAS 39 and
new general hedge accounting requirements to allow
entities to better reflect their risk management activities
in financial statements.



4= A f

AR B RS mAR M A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HZE2016F12A31H ILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

2. GNEBAMBREELN )
(b) EHEMEERELBIFE] HACNEET E

BRI EER (&)

BB EEREN — BT AE)
BEMBRELANEIRERE B G LR
FIREAHTBMAERER - DENMFTENR
E o EEERAABEFABRSAENSR
aEkRI  ERABEEERRESSIBNHA
AEBEEEHSENEMEEKEER - RIE
SRS ERAIRAGFAAC - LI BB
BREEANFIRRE T B S LERIE395
BRKLERSREERTRABMNRT -

RE E2016F12A318 I FE - AEB AT
BeRMEERSRA BB EKR AR
ATE BB EARE - RIEHEREBMIER
EHREBFIRW TS HARNEBI BN KL
EEBERTMNEATE -

BIBRI & R FE 155
HH a8

AR R E E — W FERRAE R © SZAEDR
ML R AR E B R RER M et A R SRR
AEFEBRAGEMARY - Z2BERRIE
HISZ B B A R L SRR S5 P B AR 75 P R
WR(E - BT BREE 9'J%15’ﬁﬂ~rﬁiﬁfﬁ
Bl aETERES - BREE G ERIF 185
(st ] HAEER Q’EHIJ%HﬂFEy/\Z’JJ&
HEARRE -

—KEEFEH

2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

(b)

New or amended HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continued)

HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition, classification
and measurement requirements for financial liabilities
from HKAS 39, except for financial liabilities designated
at FVTPL, where the amount of change in fair value
attributable to change in credit risk of the liability is
recognised in other comprehensive income unless that
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch. In
addition, HKFRS 9 retains the requirements in HKAS
39 for derecognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, all of the
Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities were
carried out at amortised costs without significant
impairment on the former, the implementation of
HKFRS 9 is not expected to result in any significant
impact on the Group’s financial position and results of

operations.

HKFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

The new standard establishes a single revenue
recognition framework. The core principle of the
framework is that an entity should recognise revenue
to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods and services. HKFRS 15 supersedes
existing revenue recognition guidance including HKAS
18 “Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction Contracts” and
related interpretations.
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ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

(b) New or amended HKFRSs that have been

issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continued)

HKFRS 15 requires the application of a 5-step
approach to revenue recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

Step 3:  Determine the transaction price

Step 4:  Allocate the transaction price to each
performance obligation

Step 5:  Recognise revenue when each performance
obligation is satisfied

HKFRS 15 includes specific guidance on particular
revenue related topics that may change the current
approach taken under HKFRSs. The standard also
significantly enhances the qualitative and quantitative
disclosures related to revenue.

Amendments to HKFRS 15 - Revenue from
Contracts with Customers (Clarifications to
HKFRS 15)

The amendments to HKFRS 15 included clarifications
on identification of performance obligations; application
of principal versus agent; licenses of intellectual
property; and transition requirements.

The directors have performed a preliminary assessment
and expect that the implementation of the HKFRS
15 would not result in any significant impact on the
Group’s financial position and results of operations.
Meanwhile, there will be additional disclosure
requirement under HKFRS 15 upon its adoption.
However, the directors are still in the process of
assessing the full impact of the application of HKFRS
15 on the Group’s financial statements and it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable financial estimate
of the effect until the directors complete the detailed
review. As a result, the above preliminary assessment
is subject to change. The directors do not intend to
early apply the standard.
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(b) New or amended HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (Continued)
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HKFRS 16 — Leases

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will
supersede HKAS 17 “Leases” and related
interpretations, introduces a single lessee accounting
model and requires a lessee to recognise assets and
liabilities for all leases with a term of more than twelve
months, unless the underlying asset is of low value.
Specifically, under HKFRS 16, a lessee is required to
recognise a right-of-use asset representing its right to
use the underlying leased asset and a lease liability
representing its obligation to make lease payments.
Accordingly, a lessee should recognise depreciation
of the right-of-use asset and interest on the lease
liability, and also classifies cash repayments of the
lease liability into a principal portion and an interest
portion and presents them in the statement of cash
flows. Also, the right-of-use asset and the lease liability
are initially measured on a present value basis. The
measurement includes non-cancellable lease payments
and also includes payments to be made in optional
periods if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise
an option to extend the lease, or to exercise an option
to terminate the lease. This accounting treatment is
significantly different from the lessee accounting for
leases that are classified as operating leases under the
predecessor standard, HKAS 17.

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16
substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in HKAS 17. Accordingly, a lessor
continues to classify its leases as operating leases or
finance leases, and to account for those two types of
leases differently.
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2.

3.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

(b)

New or amended HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 — Leases (Continued)

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has non-
cancellable operating lease commitments of
approximately HK$137,190,000. HKAS 17 does
not require the recognition of any right-of-use asset
or liability for future payments for these leases;
instead, certain information is disclosed as operating
lease commitments in note 34(b). A preliminary
assessment indicates that these arrangements will
meet the definition of a lease under HKFRS 16, and
hence the Group will recognise a right-of-use asset
and a corresponding liability in respect of all these
leases unless they qualify for low value or short-term
leases upon the application of HKFRS 16. The new
requirement to recognise a right-of-use asset and a
related lease liability is expected to have a significant
impact on the amounts recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements and the directors
are currently assessing its potential impact. It is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the
financial effect until the directors complete the review.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

(@)

(o)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs,
which collective terms include all applicable individual
HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
and Interpretations issued by the HKICPA. The
consolidated financial statements also include the
applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under historical cost basis.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(c)

(@)

Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is the same as the
functional currency of the Company.

Business combination under common control

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group
acquired the entire equity interest in Ebisu Growth
Limited (“Ebisu Growth”) from a related party, Great
Port (Realty) Investment Limited (“Great Port Realty”),
at a cash consideration of HK$124,500,000. Further
details about the acquisition of Ebisu Growth have
been set out in the circular dated 25 November
2016. Such acquisition was approved in the ordinary
resolution passed by the shareholders by way of
poll in the extraordinary general meeting held on 16
December 2016.

The Group is founded and controlled by the Substantial
Shareholders as defined below. As to Ebisu Growth,
it was established by Great Port Realty (which in turn
is indirectly controlled by the substantial shareholders,
Mr. Yuen Man Ying (“Mr. Yuen”), Mr. Huen Kwok
Chuen (“Mr. Huen”), Mr. Leung Shing Chiu (“Mr.
Leung”) and Ms. Lee Po Fun (“Ms. Lee”) (“Substantial
Shareholders”) since the incorporation of Great Port
Realty). As the Company and Ebisu Growth are
ultimately controlled by the Substantial Shareholders,
the acquisition is a business combination under
common control. To consistently apply for the Group’s
accounting policy for common control combination,
the acquisition of Ebisu Growth have been accounted
for based on the principles of merger accounting
as if the acquisition had occurred on the date when
the combining entities first came under the control
of the Substantial Shareholders. By applying merger
accounting, the assets and liabilities of the Group and
Ebisu Growth are combined using their existing book
values from the Substantial Shareholders’ perspective.
Accordingly, the difference arising from the acquisition
of Ebisu Growth, being the consideration given by the
Company for the acquisition of Ebisu Growth adjusted
for the elimination of the capital of Ebisu Growth, is
accounted for in equity as “Merger Reserve”.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

It should be noted that accounting estimates and

judgements are used in the preparation of the consolidated

financial statements. Although these estimates are based on

management’s best knowledge and judgement of current

events and actions, actual results may ultimately differ

from those estimates. The areas involving a higher degree

of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions

and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial

statements are disclosed in note 5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

@

(b)

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries. Inter-company transactions and balances
between group entities together with unrealised profits
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
impairment on the asset transferred, in which case the
loss is recognised in profit or loss.

The carrying amount of non-controlling interests
that represent present ownership interests in the
subsidiaries is the amount of those interests at initial
recognition plus such non-controlling interest’s share
of subsequent changes in equity. Total comprehensive
income is attributed to such non-controlling interests
even if this results in those non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance.

Merger accounting for business combinations
involving entities under common control

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements items of the combining entities or
businesses in which the common control combination
occurs as if they had been combined from the date
when the combining entities or businesses first came
under the control of the controlling party.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

Merger accounting for business combinations
involving entities under common control
(Continued)

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses
are consolidated using the existing book values
from the ultimate controlling parties’ perspective. No
amount is recognised in respect of goodwill or excess
of acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
over cost at the time of common control combination,
to the extent of the continuation of the controlling
party’s interest.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income includes the results of each
of the combining entities or business from the earliest
date presented or since the date when the combining
entities or businesses first came under the common
control, where this is shorter period and up to the date
of disposal, as appropriate.

Since Ebisu Growth was incorporated during the
current year, no restatement of comparative figures in
the consolidated financial statements is required.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company
is able to exercise control. The Company controls
an investee if all three of the following elements are
present: (i) power over the investee, (i) exposure, or
rights, to variable returns from the investee and (iii)
the ability to use its power to affect those variable
returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a change in
any of these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses, if any. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividend received and receivable during the
year.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d) Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary
nor a joint arrangement. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee but not control or joint
control over those policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method
whereby they are initially recognised at cost and
thereafter, their carrying amounts are adjusted for
the Group’s share of the post-acquisition change
in the associates’ net assets except that losses in
excess of the Group’s interest in the associate are not
recognised unless there is an obligation to make good
those losses.

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the
Group and its associates are recognised only to the
extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the associate.
The investor’s share in the associate’s profits and
losses resulting from these transactions is eliminated
against the carrying value of the associate. Where
unrealised losses provide evidence of impairment of
the asset transferred they are recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value
of the Group’s share of the identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities acquired is capitalised and
included in the carrying amount of the interest in an
associate. Where there is objective evidence that the
interest in an associate has been impaired, the carrying
amount of the investment is tested for impairment in
the same way as other non-financial assets.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e

®

Foreign currency translation

Transactions entered into by group entities in
currencies other than the currency of the primary
economic environment in which they operate (the
“functional currency”) are recorded at the rates
ruling when the transactions occur. Foreign currency
monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the
rates ruling at the end of the reporting period. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not re-translated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Company (i.e. HK$) at the average exchange
rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the year, in which case, the rates
approximating to those ruling when the transactions
took place are used. All assets and liabilities of foreign
operations are translated at the rate ruling at the end
of the reporting period. Exchange differences arisen,
if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity as foreign exchange reserve
(attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of the items.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other costs, such as repairs and
maintenance, are recognised as an expense in profit
or loss during the reporting period in which they are
incurred.

No depreciation is provided on freehold land. Asset in
the course of construction is shown as construction
in progress (note 4(g)). Other property, plant and
equipment are depreciated so as to write off costs
over their estimated useful lives, using a straight-
line basis, at the rates shown below per annum. The
estimated useful lives and depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
the reporting period.

Leasehold improvements 30% or over the lease term,
whichever is shorter

Office equipment 20%
Computer equipment 20%
Motor vehicles 20%
Furniture and fixtures 20%

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s
estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property,
plant and equipment is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and its carrying amount, and is
recognised in profit or loss on disposal.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

(h)

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represented hotel building
under construction and is stated at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Cost comprises
direct costs of construction as well as borrowing
costs capitalised during the periods of construction
and installation. Capitalisation of these costs ceases
and the construction in progress is transferred to the
appropriate class of property, plant and equipment
when substantially all the activities necessary
to prepare the assets for their intended use are
completed. No depreciation is provided for in respect
of construction in progress until it is completed and
ready for its intended use.

Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to
use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of
time in return for a payment or a series of payments.
Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless
of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a
lease.

Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the Group are classified
as operating leases.

Where the Group has the right over the use of assets
held under operating leases, payments made under the
leases are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the lease terms except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the time pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased assets. Lease
incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as
an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rent is charged to profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i)  Financial instruments

(i)

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets at initial
recognition, depending on the purpose for which
the asset was acquired. Financial assets at
FVTPL are initially measured at fair value and all
other financial assets are initially measured at
fair value plus transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial
assets. Regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. A regular way purchase
or sale is a purchase or sale of a financial asset
under a contract whose terms require delivery
of the asset within the time frame established
generally by regulation or convention in the
marketplace concerned.

Loans and receivables

These assets are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. They arise principally
through the provision of goods and services to
customers (“trade debtors”), and also incorporate
other types of contractual monetary assets.
Subsequent to initial recognition, they are carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment losses.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i)  Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group assesses, at the end of the reporting
period, whether there is any objective evidence
that financial asset is impaired. Financial asset
is impaired if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events
that has occurred after the initial recognition
of the asset and that event has an impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

= a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

= granting concession to a debtor because of
debtor’s financial difficulty; and

- it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation.

Loans and receivables

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
when there is objective evidence that the asset
is impaired, and is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest rate.
The carrying amount of financial asset is reduced
through the use of an allowance account.
When any part of financial asset is determined
as uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account for the relevant financial asset.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i)  Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

(iv)

(v)

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the liabilities
were incurred. Financial liabilities at amortised
cost are initially measured at fair value, net of
directly attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including
trade payables, accruals, other payables,
amounts due to associates and bank borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method. The related
interest expense is recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the amortisation process.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or financial liability and of allocating interest
income or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
or payments through the expected life of the
financial asset or liability, or where appropriate, a
shorter period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i)

()

k)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(vi)  Derecognition
The Group derecognises a financial asset when
the contractual rights to the future cash flows
in relation to the financial asset expire or when
the financial asset has been transferred and the
transfer meets the criteria for derecognition in
accordance with HKAS 39.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and
subsequently at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost comprises all costs of purchase and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. Cost is calculated
using the first-in-first-out method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs necessary
to make the sale.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the sales of
goods, rendering of services and the use by others
of the Group’s assets yielding interest, net of rebates
and discounts. Provided it is probable that economic
benefits will flow to the Group and revenue can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised as follows:

Income from provision of package tours and travel bus
services is recognised when the services are rendered
by the Group.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k)

()

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Income from provision of ancillary travel related
services, sales of air tickets, hotel accommodation
and hotel packages is recognised when the services
are rendered by the Group as an agent on a net
basis. Where the Group acts as a principal in
certain transactions, including sales of tickets and
merchandise, revenue is recognised upon transfer
of the significant risks and rewards of ownership to
the customer. This is usually taken as the time when
the tickets and merchandise are delivered and the
customer has accepted the tickets and merchandise.

Commission income is recognised when the services
are rendered by the Group.

Interest income is recognised on a time basis on the
principals outstanding at the applicable interest rates.

Rebate from a supplier is recognised as income when
the Group’s entitlement to the rebate is established
in accordance with the terms of the subscriber
agreement, i.e. when the booking of the corresponding
travel item is confirmed.

Income tax

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and
deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

(m)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except
for recognised assets and liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profits, deferred tax liabilities
are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates appropriate
to the expected manner in which the carrying amount
of the asset or liability is realised or settled and that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end
of the reporting period.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except
when they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income in which case the taxes are
also recognised in other comprehensive income.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at banks and
on hand as well as short-term highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value.
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EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n)

Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are employee benefits
(other than termination benefits) that are expected to
be settled wholly before twelve months after the end
of the reporting period in which the employees render
the related service. Short-term employee benefits are
recognised in the year when the employees render the
related service.

Defined contribution retirement plan

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under
which the Group pays fixed contributions into a
separate entity.

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for those employees who
are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme in
Hong Kong. The Group has no legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions after payment
of the fixed contribution. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries to the maximum mandatory contributions as
required by the MPF Scheme. Liabilities and assets
may be recognised if underpayment or prepayment
has occurred and are included in current liabilities or
current assets, respectively, as they are normally of
a short-term nature. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in
an independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n)

Employee benefits (Continued)
Defined contribution retirement plan (Continued)

The subsidiary of the Group incorporated in Macau
make monthly contributions to the social security
fund managed by the relevant authority of the
local government, which undertake the retirement
obligations of the Group’s employees. The Group
has no obligation for payment of retirement benefits
beyond the monthly contributions. The contribution
payable is charged as an expense to profit or loss as
and when incurred.

According to the existing relevant regulations in
Taiwan, a subsidiary of the Company incorporated in
Taiwan is required to participate in the retirement plan
or scheme operated by the government of Taiwan (the
“Taiwan Scheme”) for the provision of pension benefits
to its employees. The Taiwan subsidiary is required
to contribute a certain percentage of its payroll costs
to the Taiwan Scheme to fund the benefits. The
Group has no further payment obligations once the
contributions have been paid.

The subsidiaries of the Company incorporated in Japan
have established a defined contribution plan for its
eligible employees. The assets of the plan are held in
separate trustee-administered funds. Contributions to
the plan by the Group are calculated as a percentage
of employees’ monthly basic salaries. The Group has
no further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary which
operated in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
are required to participate in a central pension scheme
operated by the local municipal government (the “Central
Pension Scheme”). This subsidiary is required to
contribute certain percentage of employees’ salaries to
the Central Pension Scheme. The Group has no further
payment obligations once the contributions have been
paid.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n)

()

Employee benefits (Continued)
Defined contribution retirement plan (Continued)

All contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans are recognised as an expense in profit or loss
when the services are rendered by the employees and
when they fall due under the relevant regulations.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of the following assets
to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss or an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists
or may have decreased:

property, plant and equipment;
construction in progress; and

- interests in associates

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use) of an
asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, to the
extent that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised as income immediately.

Value in use is based on the estimated future
cash flows expected to be derived from the asset,
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

(@)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, which it is probable will result in an outflow of
economic benefits that can be reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
the existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits
is remote.

Related parties

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(

) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of key management personnel
of the Group or the Company’s parent.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(q) Related parties (Continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions apply:

)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others);

one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member);

both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of the employees of the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)() has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
key management personnel of the entity (or
of a parent of the entity); or

the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Company’s parent.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

@)

(r)

Related parties (Continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity and include:

()  that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

(i)  dependents of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.

Share-based payments

Where share options are awarded to employees and
others providing similar services, the fair value of the
options at the date of grant is recognised in profit
or loss over the vesting period with a corresponding
increase in the employee share option reserve within
equity. Non-market vesting conditions are taken into
account by adjusting the number of equity instruments
expected to vest at the end of the reporting period
so that, ultimately, the cumulative amount recognised
over the vesting period is based on the number of
options that eventually vest. Market vesting conditions
are factored into the fair value of the options granted.
As long as all other vesting conditions are satisfied,
a charge is made irrespective of whether the market
vesting conditions are satisfied. The cumulative
expense is not adjusted for failure to achieve a market
vesting condition.

Where the terms and conditions of options are
modified before they vest, the increase in the fair value
of the options, measured immediately before and after
the modification, is also recognised in profit or loss
over the remaining vesting period.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(r)

(s)

Share-based payments (Continued)

Where equity instruments are granted to persons
other than employees and others providing similar
services, the fair value of goods or services received
is recognised in profit or loss unless the goods
or services qualify for recognition as assets. A
corresponding increase in equity is recognised. For
cash-settled share-based payments, a liability is
recognised at the fair value of the goods or services
received.

Borrowing costs

Borrowings costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to be ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets.

Capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases when the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs
are recognised as an expense in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Borrowing costs include interest charges and other
costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of
funds.
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(ii)

5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and judgements concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
judgements that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below:

(i)  Depreciation

The Group depreciates the property, plant and
equipment in accordance with the accounting policies
stated in note 4(f). The estimated useful lives reflect
the management’s estimates of the periods that the
Group intends to derive future economic benefits from
the use of these assets. The management reassesses
the estimated useful lives at the end of the reporting
period.

(i) Impairment of receivables

The management assesses impairment of receivables
on a regular basis. This estimate is based on the credit
history of the customers and debtors and current
market conditions. The management reassesses the
impairment of receivables at the end of the reporting
period.

(i) Estimates of current tax and deferred tax
Significant judgements are required in determining
the amount of the provision for tax and the timing
of payment of the related tax. Where the final tax
outcomes are different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the
income tax and deferred tax provisions in the periods
in which such determination is made.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(iv) Classification of freehold land and hotel

(v)

building under construction

As disclosed in notes 14 and 15 in respect of the
freehold land and construction in progress of the hotel
building, these items are not classified as investment
properties as the Group retains significant risks of
running the business, i.e. exposure to variation in the
future cash flows generated by the operation. Although
the Group has outsourced day-to-day administrative
functions to a hotel management company, the
Group is not a purely passive investor. Accordingly,
management considered that these items should
be classified as owner-occupied property. Once the
construction in progress is completed, it would be
transferred to property, plant and equipment.

Impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment and construction in progress

Judgement is required in the area of asset impairment,
particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event has
occurred that may indicate that the related asset
values may not be recoverable; (2) whether the
carrying value of an asset can be supported by the
recoverable amount, being the higher of fair value less
costs to sell or value-in-use, which is the net present
value of future cash flows which are estimated based
upon the continued use of the asset in the business;
and (3) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied
in preparing cash flow projections including whether
these cash flow projections are discounted using an
appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions used to
determine the level, if any, of impairment, including the
discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in the
cash flow projections, could materially affect the net
present value used in the impairment test and as a
result affect the Group’s financial condition and results
of operations.
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6.

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group has identified its operating segments based on
the regular internal financial information reported to the chief
operating decision-makers about allocation of resources to
assess the performance of the Group’s business.

During the year, the Group obtained control of Ebisu
Growth by acquiring its entire equity interest. The principal
activities of Ebisu Growth are ownership, development
and management of a hotel in Japan which is still under
construction. The activities of Ebisu Growth have become a
new reportable and operating segment of the Group and are
separately assessed by the chief operating decision-makers.

Accordingly, the Group has two reportable segments.
The segments are managed separately as each business
offers different products and services and requires different
business strategies. The following summary describes the
operations in each of the Group’s reportable segments:

- Travel and travel related services business (“Travel-
related Business”)

- Hotel operation (“Hotel Business”)

Management assesses the performance of the operating
segments based on the measure of segment results which
represents the net of revenue, cost of sales, other income
and gain/(loss), selling expenses, administrative expenses
and share of results of associates directly attributable to
each operating segment. Central administrative costs are
not allocated to the operating segments as they are not
included in the measure of the segment results that are
used by the chief operating decision-makers for assessment
of segment performance.
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6.

SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

Segment assets include all assets with exception of
corporate assets, including interest in an associate, cash
at banks and certain prepayments and other receivable
which are not directly attributable to the business activities
of operating segments as these assets are managed
on a group basis. Likewise, segment liabilities exclude
corporate liabilities, such as certain other payables, which
are not directly attributable to the business activities of
any operating segments and not allocated to segments.

@ EBESE (@) Business segments
g3
Vil MiPEE S &5t
Travel-related Hotel
Business Business Total
F#Ex F#ET FHET
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BZE2016F12H831H For the year ended
IEFE 31 December 2016
Yz Revenue
KBNS From external customers 1,680,232 - 1,680,232
Al 2 ;o Sk Reportable segment revenue 1,680,232 - 1,680,232
A2 |H LA, (E538) Reportable segment profit/(loss) 27,033 (1,940) 25,093
M - WEREETE Depreciation on property, plant
and equipment 7,725 - 7,725
JE(REEE A RIFEE Share of results of associates 2,751 - 2,751
Y Income tax expense 1,508 1,895 3,403
T 2RDIPEE Reportable segment assets 453,870 171,365 625,235
nE2HopEa s Reportable segment liabilities 250,465 55,464 305,929
NEIFRIEE Additions to non-current assets 21,842 160,070 181,912
FE(EEE AR B EFE Share of net assets of associates 5,041 - 5,041
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6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(@) Business segments (Continued)

Jiigisz
il B G FET% A&t
Travel-related Hotel
Business Business Total
FET TETT TFET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
B Z2015F12831H For the year ended
IEFE 31 December 2015
& Revenue
KEIIBEF From external customers 1,858,341 - 1,858,341
Al 2 7 B Reportable segment revenue 1,858,341 = 1,858,341
A 23D IEF Reportable segment profit 177,948 = 177,948
Y% - BB MERETE Depreciation on property, plant
and equipment 4,387 - 4,387
FE(L B & A B 2EAE Share of results of associates 1,485 = 1,485
FriefiFYx Income tax expense 25,253 = 25,253
2Ry IBEE Reportable segment assets 621,279 - 621,279
EEE =R Reportable segment liabilities 260,720 - 260,720
NEIERBEE Additions to non-current assets 7,299 = 7,299
JERE SN R E ERE Share of net assets of associates 2,467 - 2,467
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6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

O 2FH g - Bas - BENEE (b) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenues,
Z#IER profit or loss, assets and liabilities
2016 2015
FE T F&TT
HK$’000 HK$’000
Yz Revenue
7] 2 /5 B Reportable segment revenue 1,680,232 1,858,341
ERE W Consolidated revenue 1,680,232 1,858,341
2016 2015
FH&T T 7T
HK$°000 HK$’000
FRAT{S BB 2 AT a A Profit before income tax expense
A] 285 2B Reportable segment profit 25,093 177,948
FEAG B & R R & A Share of profit of an associate 711 =
Hip et K EtE Other gains and losses 337 111
AOMEERT Unallocated corporate expenses (3,093) (2,372)
BRETS B A AIAR & = A Consolidated profit before
income tax expense 23,048 175,687
2016 2015
FH&T T
HK$’°000 HK$’000
EiE Assets
AIERDHBEE Reportable segment assets 625,235 621,279
BN RIS Interest in an associate 4,377 =
AOBRCELE Unallocated corporate assets 2,944 2,835
IR B E Consolidated total assets 632,556 624,114

EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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6.

SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenues,

TYERE(E) profit or loss, assets and liabilities (Continued)
2016 2015
FHET T
HK$’000 HK$’000
afE Liabilities
2RO BEEB Reportable segment liabilities 305,929 260,720
AOBEEERRE Unallocated corporate liabilities 2,922 2,321
CEEAE Consolidated total liabilities 308,851 263,041
@ B (c) Geographic information

TREJNAKERAIEFF KEREMER
RMEEMSHREE(FENERBEE])
SN SRR B B EE W R DA

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s
revenue from external customers and non-current
assets other than other receivable and deferred tax
asset (“Specified non-current assets”).

RE IR F RS BEFRDEE
(REFPHEH®ES) (REMFEH®ED)

Revenue from
external customers Specified non-current assets

(by customer location) (by physical location)

2016 2015 2016 2015
FExT FHE T FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

BB TR Hong Kong and Macau
(FriEtth) (place of domicile) 1,676,912 1,858,341 18,593 12,117
HZ Japan 3,320 - 167,391 48
HEp Others - - 9,959 2,419
1,680,232 1,858,341 195,943 14,584

FERE2ERSER REER - A
REDEEREEPOLNMEMET

The place of domicile is determined by referring to the
place that the Group regards as its hometown, has the
majority of operation and centre of management.
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6.

SERIRE () 6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

() BEFEEFZEF (d) Information about a major customer
EHZE2016F12A31H I EEANE B H &L The Group did not have any single customer
8 —X P EEBIANEE10%A Kz (2015 contributed more than 10% of the Group’s revenue
F o) o during the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil).

R HEMIEA\RYZ (&8);$3% 7. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND GAIN/

(LOSS), NET

W EIRTE REB S RTAARE R REE Revenue includes the net invoiced value of package tours

BUAEBIEARERR((BERTEE - @Rk and ancillary travel related products and the net proceeds

TE(EBERTEESEA BERTER]) LEE) from free independent travellers (“FIT”) packages, individual

HEIRITEBEIRSE TSR IEERE - NEEREZH travel elements (together with FIT packages referred to as “FIT

KRIrBGFIERINESEHT| T - Products”) and ancillary travel related services. The amounts

of each significant category of revenue recognised during
the year are as follows:
2016 2015
FExT FATT
HK$°000 HK$'000
g Revenue
R1TE Package tours 1,505,955 1,660,538
BE{TEm(ME) FIT Products (note) 42,782 76,088
BN M IRTTAR R E S K AR TS Ancillary travel related products and services
(Bi#£) (note) 131,495 121,715
1,680,232 1,858,341
Hibw AR Wi (B518)F48 Other income and gain/(loss), net
TE 5 e zs (8518 ) 3 58 Exchange gain/(loss), net 5,605 (4,230)
BEIBUA K Handling income and forfeited fees from
B98N customers 772 621
RITIF R BUA Interest income on bank deposits 1,443 1,464
HpE R 40 Rebate from a supplier 1,881 2,875
FETRUTA Sundry income 337 381
10,038 1,111

112 =EEERERAT  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2016F12A31H ILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

7. WEREMBAREE (BER)FR

7. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND GAIN/

() (LOSS), NET (Continued)

Kt AEBERTEREE FEHBURTHEBER R Note: ~ The Group’s revenue from FIT Products and certain
RIGELENMFZHEABEAREBERERETEALK ancillary travel related products and services is considered
HHIRE At A5 - 2 W R EWFESZIE as cash collected on behalf of principals as an agent,
BEEIN TR ¢ and thus recorded on a net basis. The gross proceeds

received and receivable are as follows:
2016 2015
FHET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
BEM R UL FETIS SRIB 4R %R Gross proceeds received and receivable 468,452 608,375
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8.

114 HEBEERARLD

BR BT 45 B A i 7

BRSBTS FIAEMER (GFA) A TIHB B

8. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

Profit before income tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

2016 2015
FE T FAT
HK$’000 HK$’000
TESTHE S SR 8H Amortisation of prepaid lease payments = 1,276
1% E R 37 i Auditors’ remuneration 1,427 1,186
BLE 5 e R SH YRR Bad debts written off in respect of trade
receivables 49 -
TR AR NEFEEK A Cost of inventories recognised as expenses 31,997 41,299
M - BRERZEITE Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 7,725 4,387
HEWE BEK Gain on disposal of property, plant and
R W R equipment, net (3) -
BATHEENEEHERS Operating lease rental in respect of:
— % — Premises 27,094 25,289
— NI — Office equipment 2,336 2,287
— kiR — Travel buses 76,908 57,304
BhE B Finance costs
—RITEEEENTEMAX — Interest expense incurred on bank
(Hiz#25) borrowings (note 25) 268 =
—H EREIRZERNLEE - Less: Imputed interest capitalised into
RE(HaE15) construction in progress (note 15) (268) =
BERA (B 122 EF 58 ):Employee costs (including directors’
emoluments in note 12):
—Fe REMmEMRET — Salaries and other benefits in kind 142,350 148,100
—RIRETEIE R — Retirement scheme contributions 6,042 6,183
148,392 154,283

) g

EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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HZE2016F12A31H ILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

9. MIFEHRAX 9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
2016 2015
FAT FAT
HK$’000 HK$’000
BRI IE — BB IR Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax
— RNEFERIE — Tax for the year 920 23,749
— B EERERE — Qver-provision in respect of prior year (53) (785)
867 22,964
BNEARITE — B TS @ il Current tax — Macau Complementary Tax
—RNEFENIE — Tax for the year 648 1,898
—REFE B — Over-provision in respect of prior year = (35)
648 1,863
BNEAEIE — PR ETEH Current tax — PRC Enterprise Income Tax
(TEEmBEH D (“EIT”)
—REERIEA — Tax for the year 86 55
B IE — A EE RIS Current tax - Taiwan Profit-Seeking
Fris®i Enterprise Income Tax
—ARFERIA — Tax for the year 358 -
IEFER IR Deferred tax
—RAFEBENR - Charged to profit or loss for the year
(Btat17) (note 17) 1,755 371
3,714 25,253

REREHRENREBRLAMSHER  RESE
EMRBRLEBEMKIAEE
BERHSHERRBREIBEEETER QRS

RBH -

REEFBHEHNDBEREELENHEAF
9 {5 =1 FE 3T A4 328 K 15216.5% (20154 : 16.5%) Y

Bk -

B A

Cayman Islands and the BVI respectively.

in Hong Kong for the year.

20165 F 3K Annual Report 2016

The group entities incorporated in the Cayman Islands and
the BVI are tax-exempted as no business is carried out
in the Cayman Islands and the BVI under the laws of the

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2015: 16.5%)
on the estimated assessable profits of subsidiaries operating
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116 RBEZERERAF

R HiMZ#)

A6 TR P P18 70 B4 T 8 5 P 4 M I
DR M REST R FIR12% (20155 : 12%)8)
B H -

HADEMERIBEATEEENHRE AR (R
20165F4 AT AL ) B (E 51 FE 5T 7 s 7 225 % A ¢
KETE - BE2016F 128310 IEFE - AEER
Hp B 8 A BT B S AT A E AR A AT PR AT B R A o
TCEMBHERRAFERELFEFRHAREE
R BIRITHEE R BRI EEE -

HE2016F12A31B IEFE » EZFFEME
FIVBER & /&L BN E R A/ G st LR %
MIZ17%(20154F : 17% )T K=t E o

REBAEENHBARESMBEANBERSE
FTef BERMRERCEB(TXHRE BAFE
) ZERERFRNRRITEE  2ERED
FEAKEREEMSMBELN23% - BRAEE
REZE20165F12 A31 B IEFEBHIRE B K
STIERE RO R A (20164 + Z) - EH L BEEEH M
BAFIS BB -

EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

) g
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Macau Complementary Tax is calculated at 12% (2015:
12%) on the estimated assessable profits of a subsidiary
operating in Macau for the year.

EIT is calculated at 25% on the estimated assessable profits
of a subsidiary operating in the PRC, which was newly set
up in April 2016, for the period. The Group has no estimated
assessable profit arising from the subsidiary operating in the
PRC for the year ended 31 December 2016. EIT represents
deemed income tax charged at the appropriate current rates
of taxation ruling in the PRC for a representative office for
the years.

Taiwan Profit-Seeking Enterprise Income Tax is calculated
at 17% on the estimated assessable profit of a subsidiary
operating in Taiwan for the year ended 31 December 2016
(2015: 17%).

Subsidiaries operating in Japan are subject to national
corporate income tax, inhabitant tax, and enterprise tax
(hereinafter collectively referred to as “dapan Profits Tax”) in
Japan, which, in aggregate, resulted in effective statutory
income tax rates of approximately 23% for the year based
on the existing legislation, interpretations and practices in
respect thereof. No provision for Japan Profits Tax has been
provided as the Group has no estimate assessable profit
arising in Japan for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015:
Nil).
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9. MEHEXE) 9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)
REAR R ENAAERE Y R F S m Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting
e profit at applicable tax rates:
2016 2015
FHET AT
HK$’000 HK$’000
R FIT1S 35 A1 71 Profit before income tax 23,048 175,687
REBNEHE16.5% Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of
(2015% : 16.5% )=TE KT 1B 16.5% (2015: 16.5%) 3,803 28,989
REMBEMEZERANB AT Tax effect of different tax rate of subsidiaries
Z PR E R operating in other jurisdictions (28) (794)
A HFIE B RIS & Tax effect of non-deductible items 1,839 733
B/AERIRIE B IS Tax effect of non-taxable items (3,413) (2,449)
AIERE R ZFAY Tax effect of temporary differences not
M E recognised (1,080) (269)
AERHIEEENHEZE Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 2,556 =
WA RERRIBEENEA Utilisation of tax losses previously not
recognised (74) (192)
AR EREEEERIE Effect on deferred tax balances resulting from
ERATEANTE a decrease in applicable tax rate (66) =
Q{Iirx_ﬁaﬁﬁﬁ'ﬁ% Over-provision in prior year (53) (820)
HAfth Others 230 55
FREyilaha Income tax expense 3,714 25,2583
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10. SlRET

10. EARNINGS PER SHARE

2016 2015
FE T FHIT
HK$’000 HK$'000
BF| Earnings

RN BIGEE AEERT Profit attributable to owners of the Company 18,670 150,469
2016 2015
T 5% T
’000 000

B E Number of shares
LimiRE e Number of ordinary shares 502,450 502,450

#H 220155 K2016F 128318 I FE AR A T #
EEEEBEERD  ALSRESRFBFRER

Diluted earnings per share were the same as the basic
earnings per share as the Company had no dilutive potential

ZRFE[RE) o shares during the years ended 31 December 2016 and
2015.

11. K2 11. DIVIDENDS
2016 2015
FH&T FHEIT
HK$°000 HK$’000

22015 FE R HAIR B FRL5EI 2015 interim dividends of HK5 cents
per share paid - 25,123

22015 FEREAPR E G107/l 2015 final dividends of HK10 cents

per share paid 50,245 -

HZE2015F12A31H ILFE - EPH)Wﬁﬁ%;‘%
(20164 : &) - & #£4925,123,000/ TTALE
/)E&/)EH' °

BEEZRE R EFR2EN(20155F : 107
i) - BRIEREHIE2EERRBFKSRIGE - #
KA B KRR AER B B S SRR DIVEFE T RR B,

118 =HPEEREMRAT  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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Interim dividend of HK5 cents (2016: Nil) per share totalling
approximately HK$25,123,000 for the year ended 31
December 2015 was declared and paid.

The directors have recommended a final dividend of HK2
cents (2015: HK10 cents) per share which is to be approved
at the forthcoming annual general meeting. The proposed
dividend is not reflected as a dividend payable in these
consolidated financial statements.
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12. EE M 12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
EETMHRENT Directors’ emoluments are disclosed as follows:
FERHEM BiER
EWEN AL
ik (Hizta) (Hiztb)  RIREEIMR st
Discretionary
Salaries and and
other benefits  performance Retirement
in kind bonuses scheme
Fee (note a) (note b)  contributions Total
T FHET FHET THET T
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$°000
2016
HiTEE Executive directors
ZR Yuen Man Ying
HEZ Huen Kwok Chuen
25k 8l Leung Shing Chiu
5 Lee Po Fun
BUINTEE Independent non-executive directors
Br R Chan Kim Fai
B Tang Koon Hung Eric
=EH Wong Lai Ming
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12. EEHM 2

12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

HeREM gk
EMEF TR
e (fiita) (HiFb)  RIKGTEIER &ar
Discretionary
Salaries and and
other benefits ~ performance Retirement
in kind bonuses scheme
Fee (note a) (note b)  contributions Total
THT THT THT THT THT
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2015
HITEE Executive directors
RN Yuen Man Ying - 1,831 4,844 89 6,764
BE 2 Huen Kwok Chuen - 1,519 4,152 73 5,744
28l Leung Shing Chiu - 1,523 4,152 70 5,745
TEX Lee Po Fun - 1,502 4,152 70 5,724
- 6,375 17,300 302 23977
BUHHTEE Independent non-executive directors
B Chan Kim Fai 185 - - - 185
B A Tang Koon Hung Eric 170 - - - 170
=EHR Wong Lai Ming 160 - - - 160
515 B . = 515
515 6,375 17,300 302 24,492
Hiita: EHEBEEBEARARIRENB AR EHE N RER Note a: Being “Salaries and other benefits in kind” paid or payable
RATTES 2 Fre REMEYER] - to executive directors of the Company in connection with
the management of the affairs of the Company and its
subsidiaries.
Hiatb: BIBRERBIELATIDZEREBRR WL HIE Note b: The discretionary and performance bonuses are

SEHAEMEE -

NE E2015% K&20
EERETAEE -

120 HEBEERARLD
A

16F12A31H IEFE @ &

EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

determined by reference to the Group’s performance and

approved by the remuneration committee.

No directors waived any emoluments during the years ended
31 December 2016 and 2015.



iR A BT R I A
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2016F12A31H ILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

13. ABmEFMAL 13. THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
REBREZZSHFMALTH » MEZ(2015%F : g Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
ZI)BARNTES  BENEESEH N EXHE12 Group, four (2015: four) were directors of the Company
Ao A N—Z (20155 : —Z) ATHBES T - whose emoluments are included in the disclosures in note

12 above. The emoluments of the remaining one (2015: one)
individual were as follows:

2016 2015

FE T FAET

HK$’000 HK$’000

e MEMEYEA Salaries and other benefits in kind 896 866

15 R RIBTEAL Discretionary and performance bonuses 1,092 896

RORET S Retirement scheme contributions 18 18

2,006 1,780

R NEEEATHFMEENT The emoluments of the highest paid non-director fell within
the following bands:

2016 2015

A= A

Number of Number of

individual individual

1,000,001/ 70 £2,000,0008C  HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 - 1

2,000,001/t 23,000,000t  HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 1 -

ENSENTFESREIEEAENZHINEENT The emoluments paid or payable to members of senior

management were within the following bands:

2016 2015

AE A

Number of Number of

individual(s) individual(s)

£ 21,000,000/ 7T Nil to HK$1,000,000 1 5
1,000,001 522,000,000t HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1 4
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14. W% - BERRE 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
KA BER
RELE  HENRRE HRR B AE BERE it
Freehold Leasehold Office Computer Motor  Furniture and
land improvements  equipment  equipment vehicles fixtures Total
TEL ThL Th Fhr T TER TEL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R2015%1 A1A At 1 January 2015
AR Cost - 32918 11,530 25,960 170 5,503 76,081
ZithE Accumulated depreciation - (28,79) (11,255) (21,770) @) (5,034) (66,876)
FAFE Net carrying amount - 4,122 275 4,190 149 469 9,205
BZ22015%12831BILEE  For the year ended 31 December 2015
ENREFE Opening net carrying amount - 4122 275 4190 149 469 9,205
hE Additions - 3,697 313 2,252 B 972 7299
Vit Depreciation - (2,220) (116) (1827) (28) (196) (4,387)
EXEREE Closing net carrying amount - 5,599 532 4615 126 1245 12,117
20158125318
R20165151H At 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016
AR Cost - 36,615 11,903 28212 175 6,475 83,380
2ithE Accumulated depreciation - (31,016) (1137) (23597) (49) (5,230) (71,263)
BEFE Net carrying amount - 5,599 532 4615 126 1245 12,117
H22016F12A31BLLEE  For the year ended 31 December 2016
KA Opening net carrying amount - 5,599 58 4,615 126 1,245 12,117
BENENBLRIAE Acquired through acquisition of a subsidiary 120,604 - - - - - 120,604
NE Additions - 3,503 9N 8,301 8,580 547 21,842
e Disposals - (29) - - &) ? (34)
i3 Depreciation - (3,639) (253) (2,331) (1,084) (418) (7,725)
ExAE Exchange adjustment - 5 - - 250 - 255
ERERFE Closing net carrying amount 120,604 5,439 1,190 10,585 7,869 1,372 147,059
20165125318 At 31 December 2016
A Cost 120,604 40,046 12,814 36,513 8,752 7,020 205,749
ZiiTE Accumulated depreciation - (34,607) (11,624) (25,928) (883) (5,648) (78,690)
BEFE Net carrying amount 120,604 5,439 1,190 10,585 7,869 1,372 147,059

122 SRBERERAD
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14. W& s BERSRE®) 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)
R2016FE12HA31H » AE B EBEEFMEY As at 31 December 2016, freehold land of the Group
120,604,00078 TR B AN A9 oK A S48 4 - LAYE located in Japan with a net carrying amount of
(RN B ER B SRITEZR (M 5E25) © approximately HK$120,604,000 was pledged to secure the

bank borrowings granted to the Group (note 25).

15. #ETHE 15. CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS
2016 2015
FE T FHBT
HK$°000 HK$’000
BZE12A31HILEE For the year ended 31 December
FERE A Opening carrying amount o -
BRKENB BTG Acquired through acquisition of a subsidiary 3,597 -
NE Additions 35,869 -
FRREFE Closing net carrying amount 39,466 =
M12831H At 31 December
BN Cost 39,466 =
ZEiE Accumulated depreciation = -
REDFE Net carrying amount 39,466 =
HR2016FE12 831 B ERE T B AR B H)H Construction in progress as at 31 December 2016
JEHEF o represents hotel building being constructed in Japan.
B £20165F12A318 L F & & & & & For the year ended 31 December 2016, imputed interest
268,000 7T (fisE25) B B AL BERETIE © of approximately HK$268,000 (note 25) were capitalised in

construction in progress.
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16. REBEE AR &= 16. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
2016 2015

Tt FHEIT

HK$’000 HK$’'000

eI EEFE Share of net assets 9,418 2,467

JE Ui Bt X R BR X Amount due from an associate 4,703 834
RSB R A BR K Amounts due to associates 4,899 4,594

(a) H2016412 831 AMEA A TFHEMT - @)
MR,
NGIE=S 4R b B

Place of
incorporation/

Particulars of associates as at 31 December 2016 are
as follows:

BT
B

Percentage of

interest held

Name of company operations indirectly Principal activities
RmERi T BE AR AR ([EGLEER ) ¥ 38% RERBIR A SRR T
EGL Tours Korea Co., Ltd. (“EGL Korea”) Korea Provision of inbound package
tours in Korea
HAGHEGLHAB* (EGLAAE ) SN 38% P B AR B IR AR IR 1T
Kabushiki Kaisha EGL Okinawa* Japan Provision of inbound package
(“EGL Okinawa”) tours in Okinawa, Japan
EXRNTN (BB BERIEERAT S 20% RE R
(TExXXTD
Guideme (Hong Kong) Network Technology Hong Kong Investment holding
Company Limited (“Guideme”)
EERY)MABRIR AR AR Y 20% BRI A Rl e 2%
Guideme (Shenzhen) Network Technology The PRC Development of information
Company Limited* technology applications
* FR B TBE R * English name for identification purpose only

124 F=HEEERERAT  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

) g



iR A BT R I A
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2016F12A31H ILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

16.

REE AR ERE)

B E2015F12A81B EFE A& E 5 3R
201554 A % 20152 AHw B R AR 2 B/ =
FRIMREE AT c ZMREBGE AR CEEHE
BAREAEIREEE - EAEEERRE 2 -

M20165F3H29R « AEE AR S K E3,666,000
BT — BB E = FRBEEERT20%E s °
ZHMENR I EEEBARNTEFERE -ES
REAEEHEXZRTRAREATE N - ALK
BARINBREERNRIER -  ZRXHGBEHBEE
—HBERARNEBREGEERER  FTEWT ¢

16. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group set up
two associates with independent third parties in Korea and
Japan in April 2015 and February 2015 respectively. The
primary business of these associates is provision of inbound
package tours which is in alignment with the Group’s
business.

On 29 March 2016, the Group acquired 20% equity interest
in Guideme from an independent third party for a cash
consideration of HK$3,666,000. The primary business of this
associate is holding an investment in the PRC. The directors
considered that the Group only has significant influence
in Guideme and thus the investment is accounted for as
interest in an associate. This transaction has resulted in
recognition of a gain on bargain purchase of an associate,
calculated as follows:

T

HK$’000

R Consideration 3,666
B REEE R B R R B EFE Less: fair value of identifiable net assets of an associate

ZAnBE (4,766)

A A T NETE R oG Gain recognised in share of results of associates (1,100)

REE2016512 A31 B IEFE  E(hEEE A a]A]
HAEERBEBEZ AR BEEFEBIIZEKAS
DY BB E N A ELE -

PIBREBRERTARER/ ) At EXRR
MEHAREEMS L AEK °

Excess of share of the net fair value of the associate’s
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment is included as income in share of results of
associates during the year ended 31 December 2016.

All these associates are of small scale and, accordingly, the
directors considered they are immaterial to the Group.
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16. REEZNTIHRS &) 16. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
(b) BIBEEREIE (b) Summarised financial information
T E S E B R E AR SN[ 2 75 Set out below is the summarised financial information
BRI E of the associates which are accounted for using equity
method:
BEXT EGL#E EGLH4E HEr
EGL EGL
Guideme Korea Okinawa Total

FTET TET FET TR
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

B Z£2016%12H31H Period/year ended 31 December
R FE 2016

AREEEMZEHYE  Aggregate amount of the Group’s

UNSIFERERE share of those associates:
— @M ER — Profit or loss (1,947) 7,139 100 5,292
— H 2 E U Es — Other comprehensive income 7 (517) 52 (458)
ZHEW=BRE Total comprehensive income (1,940) 6,622 152 4,834
EGLE EGLF4BE 5
EGL Korea EGL Okinawa Total
FHIT BT FHIT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
B E2015F12H31H Period ended 31 December 2015
LEHARS
AEBEIhZEHE Aggregate amount of the Group’s
NAEBEE share of those associates:
—m A EE — Profit or loss 4,429 (520) 3,909
— B 2 E — Other comprehensive income (226) 7 (219)
FHEWHEE Total comprehensive income 4,208 (513) 3,690
(c) MU TENBENRERASEER RER (c) Amounts due from/to associates are unsecured,
RERKERE - interest-free and repayable on demand.

126 F=EEERERAT  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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17. BEBELEE &R

17. DEFERRED TAX ASSET/LIABILITIES

RAFEMBEFERRBNELCHRAEENAR

Details of the deferred tax asset and liabilities recognised

REEEEENT and movements during the current and prior year are as
follows:
nx - BE REBELSE
B HEIR Hitr (Fit) @5t
Property, Tax losses
plant and Construction carried forward
equipment  in progress Others (note) Total
THT THT AT THET THAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
R2015F1 818 At 1 January 2015 - - - 766 766
RE&IR(A1F9)  Charged to profit or loss (note 9) - - - (371) (371)
R20155128318% At 31 December 2015 and
2016F1H1H 1 January 2016 - - - 395 395
RERXNEZ(B),/  (Charged)/credit to profit or loss for
PN the year (note 9) (1,974) (134) (441) 794 (1,755)
HMEREHHTE Effect of change in tax rate 51 4 11 - 66
R2016F12H31H At 31 December 2016 (1,923) (130) (430) 1,189 (1,294)

AN EA B3R & 0 2 B B R AT

The following is the analysis of deferred tax

financial reporting purposes:

balances for

2016 2015

FEx FET

HK$°000 HK$’000

EETRIEEE Deferred tax asset 1,189 395
FEEFIREE Deferred tax liabilities 2,483 =
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17. EEHIBEE &f&@)

18.

19.

128 RBEZERERAF

RAREBRR AEERBEBELEHIEEIE
10,065,000/ 7T.(2015%F : 4,479,000/ L) + A
PR HA A VE IR SH EE AR B 1B A0 8 ) A R 2R FERR T
i ) o ZN B B R pA R B EE AR A TE B 18626,0007%
TC(2015%F « E)BRAFAZE - WERR AR
= A E5187,289,000/ 7T (20155F : ) iR LEF
WEIE - TSR RERTEF o RBE BB
RAEEZHEERRERCELERIBEE R
7,206,000/ JT(2015%F : 2,394,000 7T ) © 14
AHB T ZHKER - BFEES  FREKAAH
B AREE 2 HIEBEERRECHIELEE
THERFZE A B A B2 2= A B AR B e A K S5 R IE
&1 -

17. DEFERRED TAX ASSET/LIABILITIES (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had tax
losses arising in Hong Kong of HK$10,065,000 (2015:
HK$4,479,000) that are available indefinitely for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies in which
the losses arose. The Group also had tax losses arising
in the PRC of HK$626,000 (2015: Nil) that will expire in
five years and losses arising in Japan of HK$7,289,000
(2015: Nil) that will expire in nine years for offsetting
against future taxable profits, respectively. Deferred tax
assets have been recognised for tax losses arising from a
subsidiary in Hong Kong of approximately HK$7,206,000
(2015: HK$2,394,000). Deferred tax assets have not been
recognised in respect of the remaining tax losses, including
the tax losses arising from the other subsidiaries in Hong
Kong, the PRC and Japan, as it is not probable that taxable
profits will be available against which the tax losses can be

utilised.
75 INVENTORIES

2016 2015
T FHEIT
HK$’000 HK$’'000
A $5 5 Y7 Merchandise for sale 16,232 7,300

B EWER 19. TRADE RECEIVABLES
2016 2015
F#&T FHIT
HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 AR Trade receivables 2,224 1,710

) g
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19. B 5 EWER#) 19. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

REBEZEZAH  RESHR - ARERBEZE
YRR DT

The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade receivables that are
not impaired as at the end of the reporting period, based on
invoice date, is as follows:

2016 2015

FTiBRT TAET

HK$’000 HK$'000

0 - 90K 0 - 90 days 2,160 1,532
91 - 180K 91 - 180 days 42 178
181 — 365K 181 — 365 days 22 -
2,224 1,710

AEERERTESEPEEDRNRE - BF /10
REQOX - RIFFH B - "EBRBMEZE SR
WEREVERER DTN T -

The Group has a policy of granting trade customers with
credit terms of generally 10 days to 90 days. The ageing
analysis of the Group’s trade receivables that are not
impaired, based on due date, is as follows:

2016 2015

FET FHT

HK$°000 HK$'000

AR EA TR AR RE Neither past due nor impaired 1,485 837

BREFPRIN=EA
HBEFXHRE=="EA2MH

Past due within three months 722 832
Past due more than three months but within

six months 12 41

HBIRIE K HAR R /N E A Past due more than six months but within
E—F2H one year 5 =
2,224 1,710

RIEER  ARELBEFEBATHBEED
Rk AEBAAHERREZE S ERELN
739,000/ Jt.(2015% : 873,000/ 7T ) ° 7 #1 Hf
MABRENESERKEEAEBYIEF,ER M
FERAEBABERITNR SRR - —Km
T AEEUTIRZERBIFEEMERSH A
fEFRIRE -

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
trade receivables of approximately HK$739,000 (2015:
HK$873,000) that were past due but not impaired as there
was no recent history of default in respect of these trade
debtors. Trade receivables that were neither past due
nor impaired related to a large number of independent
customers that had a good track record of credit with the
Group. In general, the Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements over these balances.
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20. 51 & ~ AR R EBERER 20. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

2016 2015
FBT FHEIT
HK$’000 HK$’000

FREBEE Non-current asset
H fth fE U AR Other receivable 3,123 =

RBEE Current assets
H A fE U BR Other receivables 18,761 21,842
HER Deposits 9,011 8,844
SELNEN Prepayments 95,377 90,992
123,149 121,678
21. EWEAE X R R 21. AMOUNT DUE FROM A RELATED COMPANY
2016 2015
FH&T T
HK$’000 HK$’000
REITERARI(TAETT]) Great Port Limited (“Great Port”) 2,656 2,503
RARIAITEERIEE - BEE  REERTL The executive directors of the Company, Mr. Yuen, Mr.
THEAEREITHIIREE Huen, Mr. Leung and Ms. Lee, have equity interests in Great
Port.

JEWRAE R AR A EER - £ ERIREREE - The amount due from a related company is unsecured,

interest-free and repayable on demand.

RIFEHR - BWABITERFARAEDES At the end of the reporting periods, the amount due from
MEEZS - Great Port represented rental deposits paid for rented
premises.

130 =HEERERAT  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

) g



fra MR K

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2016F12A31H ILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016

22. MP|ITERURRITERR
EERE

22. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AT

BANKS AND ON HAND

2016 2015
FET FAT
HK$°000 HK$’000
BITER Cash at banks 280,730 471,477
EERE Cash on hand 2,607 3,633
283,337 475,110
o ERRITIFR Less: Pledged bank deposits (22,461) (21,965)
AR R ZIBITIEAR R Cash at banks and on hand per consolidated
EFRS statement of financial position 260,876 453,145
B REIFRR BB =1EA Less: Fixed deposits with original maturity
ZEHRITIER over three months (9,463) _
HERERERCRS Cash and cash equivalents per consolidated
LKIESZEY statement of cash flows 251,413 453,145

AEBHRERBECEEMREERSTARTE
SR AR F B F R 5T B A IRTT 17 s AR AT T 35
R EMAEHRITIFR - R20165F12H31H -
HEF RN F0.01%%E2.75% (20155 : 0.1% =
3.4%) ' [REHAHEARR & = 1@ A sk AR ©

M2016%F12HA31H * Z&E B K/ THRITHFERL
22,461,000/ 7C(2015%F : 21,965,000 7T ) # #
BT ERARKXAEENETE=ZFHAE
RENEY IR o

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents comprise bank
deposits carrying interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates and short-term bank deposits carrying
interests at prevailing market interest rate ranging from
0.01% to 2.75% (2015: 0.1% to 3.4%) per annum as at 31
December 2016, with an original maturity of three months or
less.

As at 31 December 2016, certain bank deposits of the
Group amounted to approximately HK$22,461,000 (2015:
HK$21,965,000) were pledged to banks as securities for
letters of guarantee issued to certain third parties on behalf
of the Group.
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23. BSEMER 23. TRADE PAYABLES
B 5 TR B HIR 15 B A [7) £ FE g = B M K The credit terms of trade payables vary according to the
REBMARE @ BEA1XES0K - iIRIBESHNR terms agreed with different suppliers, which normally range
BEAMERCETHEBEZHE—) » NREHEXR from 1 day to 30 days. Based on the receipts of services
REBYE FEMBENERBITOT : and goods, which normally coincided with the invoice dates,

the ageing analysis of the Group’s trade payables as at the
end of the reporting period is as follows:

2016 2015

FH&T T

HK$’°000 HK$’'000

0 - 90X 0 - 90 days 45,796 50,505
91 - 180K 91 — 180 days 2,089 1,246
181 — 365K 181 — 365 days 113 118
B iB365K Over 365 days 222 168
48,220 52,037

24. FESHEIE - QST S B E M E(TEE 24. ACCRUALS, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND
OTHER PAYABLES

2016 2015

Fi&T FET

HK$°000 HK$’'000

EErER Accrued expenses 8,651 7,960
BREFETE Customer deposits received 136,981 127,779
H b fETER Other payables 42,944 59,127
188,576 194,866
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25. SRITEFK 25. BANK BORROWINGS

2016 2015
FE T FAT
HK$’000 HK$’000
IERE Non-current
IRITER - BT Bank borrowings, secured 53,287 _

R2016F12A831H @ SRITER DA AEREHEED
120,604,000/%8 LMW1 3 ~ BB R EEEF -
(FtzE14) °

RITERMBRAABEIGREEENEREMN
RA)EHE - BIRRAER N RORIRE HR A

E°

RITEREBRAERE A E1.19%K%1.20%#%
B A E - FRNESEMGER B 4268,000/8

ﬁo

As at 31 December 2016, the bank borrowings were
secured by charges over property, plant and equipment
with aggregate carrying amounts of approximately
HK$120,604,000 (note 14).

The bank borrowings are initially measured at fair value,
net of directly attributable costs incurred and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

The bank borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using effective interest rate of 1.19% and
1.20% per annum and imputed interest of approximately
HK$268,000 was incurred during the year.

MNEIREHIK » IEREBBITERBRBIEZ T XAT At the end of each reporting period, total non-current bank
AT BHEIESE borrowings were scheduled to repay as follows:

2016 2015

FET FHAT

DITINT (Hfat): Analysed into (note): HK$’000 HK$’'000

—FN Within one year - =

—F LA BB Over one year, but within two years 4,030 =

MFE A B BB R F Over two years, but within five years 16,123 =

AFMUE Over five years 33,134 =

53,287 -

Hret &SRB R R R BV B SR TH IR B SR i o P MY TR 5E
ERBHIR

Note: The amounts due shown in the repayment schedule are
based on the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan
agreement.
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25. $RITRER (%) 25. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)
R2016E12 A31 HHRITEFEBEHI T - Details of the bank borrowings as at 31 December 2016 are

stated below:

rg A= EFHARR
Principal Interest Repayment
amount rate terms
FAT
HK$'000
AR EFHERNER Loan denominated in Japanese Yen 53,287 FHEXR/=M ZAERT_FRX
(“JPY") RAEIR R ERTT g
CE$3-V)ils

F7%1.00%
3-month Tokyo Payable within

Interbank 12 years
Offered Rate
+ 1.00%
per annum
26. B A 26. SHARE CAPITAL
B ot
Number Amount
T A% FHET
‘000 HK$’000
EE Authorised
#Z20. 18T E B AR Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each
R2015F1 818 ~ 20154 At 1 January 2015, 31 December 2015
&2016F12A31H and 2016 1,000,000 100,000
Gl ot |
Number Amount
F iz THIT
‘000 HK$’000
ERITRAEEBR Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid
201551 H1H * 20154 At 1 January 2015, 31 December 2015
&2016F12A31H and 2016 502,450 50,245
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27. f#tE 27. RESERVES

AEEFREH  HBHNGEREEIRA
BEANREEERBOMT

BR17&E
AEBR D R EREAN A ZEITRR M TS IER
BARRNBEETRGOEBEZ LD -

A Hhte
AEBEHREBRENHNBAR ZIREMAEARE
B EARMNERTRAMEBE L MHEHE

SHE et
AEBEHSNERFEHERBREBIEBRBERRR
ARB2INEEHER =5 -

AR
AEEMWEERERELBRPIFEMAZHN—RE
HERMB AR RmEkT4 (B ) AR
NaE - BEBRFKEIEHR)EIT7HR - BERERD
25% Mt 1% m M EREERE EEREEINZA
7] A& AN50%H) 7K F o 1820154 &20164F12 531
H @ AEREEDNBARRAMNS0% ° A TE 7
HEEIA S

Details of the movements in the Group’s reserves are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
The natures and purposes of reserves within equity are as
follows:

Share premium

The share premium account of the Group represents the
excess of the proceeds received over the nominal value of
the Company’s shares issued.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve of the Group represents the difference
between the investment costs in subsidiaries and the
nominal value of the issued share capital of the Group’s
subsidiaries.

Foreign exchange reserve

Foreign exchange reserve of the Group represents the
exchange differences on translation of the foreign operations
and associates into presentation currency of the Company.

Statutory reserve

Statutory reserve of the Group represents EGL Tours (Macau)
Company Limited, a subsidiary incorporated in Macau
and limited by quotas, which is required under the Macau
Commercial Code Article 377 to set aside a minimum of
25% of profit after taxation to the legal reserve until the
balance of the reserve reaches a level equivalent to 50%
of the company’s share capital. At 31 December 2016 and
2015, the legal reserve has reached 50% of the subsidiary’s
share capital. Legal reserve is not distributable.
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27.

28.

136 RBEZERERAF

#EB)

JEE R ()

RIBRERARDE - RERTACRY) BRAF]
(RARBEFEMAKS 2B AR BRFERAER
BFN(CEEBTFEBER)BLI0%EET
HEe BEEACRESHREEINEBIAMESRHN
50%HF - QIR EEESELHE—PBE - ZER
HEUAREHEBTFEBBIEMIMER -
N ZEELERHEENER AT RRINERS
SOEFMEARBS50%KTF - #ZE2016512 531
BIEFE - BRERITAECRI) BRARBEE
AR o

BIRESE

AR EERA O A A BIN 201456 11 A 13 AR
YL -

BRI

H2014%11 H28H R - BREFTEIN AR AT
FoRBEBRENS  ES2ENBERELEMAE
ER2EEWAHEEERERRTROOEL
REENMENUATRESE (AR ARMDNELE
R 2 B 49 B BB R BT B 3R AR A9 UL T E : (i)
AARRMRBEERLERE ZHE B AE
EEAEBIFARKATOTHIRTE  Kiii)
ROEE - REERE 2 ZHAIREL A I8
BB

EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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27.

28.

RESERVES (Continued)

Statutory reserve (Continued)

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC,
EGL Tours (Shenzhen) Company Limited, a subsidiary
incorporated in the PRC, is required to appropriate 10% of
the annual statutory net profit after taxation (after offsetting
any prior years’ losses) to the statutory reserve fund. When
the balance of the statutory reserve fund reaches 50% of
the entity’s registered capital, any further appropriation is
optional. The statutory reserve fund can be utilised to offset
prior years’ losses or to increase the registered capital.
However, such balance of the statutory reserve fund must
be maintained at a minimum of 50% of the registered capital
after such usages. For the year ended 31 December 2016,
there was no profit generated by EGL Tours (Shenzhen)
Company Limited.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
adopted by the Company was approved by the shareholders
on 13 November 2014.

A summary of the Share Option Scheme is set out below:

The Share Option Scheme became effective for a period
of ten years commencing on 28 November 2014. Under
the Share Option Scheme, the directors shall, in its
absolute discretion select and make an offer to any eligible
participants to subscribe for shares of the Company at a
subscription price being not less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of shares of the Company as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of the
offer of grant; (ii) the average closing price of the shares
of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of the offer of grant; and (iii) the nominal
value of the share. The offer of a grant of options may be
accepted within 28 days from the date of the offer.
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28. BB HERTE(2)

EREAERERERES SR AR 52014
F11H28A BT TF) 2 HRBAAEITE - B
REBRENTEAHNBESETITRELEZLD
B A AR AR ABET + MERZ BRI B B B AR i X
A BB RT10F 2 B - WP IR R AR IE 2 6 3UR
PR o

AR ERT I8 N AR ETERE W AT
158 B i i e 538 (R 7R 1 ) 3R PR AR 4% A 4] L fth B AR
FrEIMRE R M EREM S TRITHNRNBE R
B TNESHRARERREERERMMEBITTHIESR
NAEBITRMBI10% (MG RBREAR &SR 2 %
TR EI %) - B150,000,0008% °

RNEFERBAEFEREBBERERT D EM
B8 A% #E o 120154 K&20165F12A31H » & T
IR IR BB R AT Bl IR H A B R 1T B AR - BEAR
B T E AT LRER S kERRAE £
REARER o

28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The options granted shall be exercisable in whole or in
part in the effective option period (i.e. 10 years from the
commencing date on 28 November 2014). The exercise
period of the options granted is determined and notified by
the directors to the grantee thereof at the time of making an
offer provided that such period shall not exceed the period
of 10 years from the date of the grant of the option is made,
subject to the provisions for early termination thereof.

The maximum number of shares to be issued upon the
exercise of all outstanding options granted at any time under
this Share Option Scheme together with options which may
be granted under any other share option schemes for the
time being of the Company must not in aggregate exceed
10% of the shares of the Company in issue immediately
following the completion of the global offering and the
capitalisation issue (but taking no account of any shares
issued upon over-allotment), being 50 million shares.

No share options were granted under the Share Option
Scheme during the current and prior years. At 31 December
2016 and 2015, there were no outstanding options granted
under the Share Option Scheme. Share options do not
confer rights to the holders to dividends or to vote at
shareholders’ meetings.
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29. BRIKFTE

138 HEBERARAD

AEEEZRBEEAFNERESHEETER
Eﬂgzoooimﬂﬁl@ﬁzﬁﬁuli HEerE
16 2 B — %%.5/%$§/Exﬂ%)\%@2€ﬁ*é§+
J BESEREBHR - BERESHE B
HHE B BIRE BB A Z5%E B R:ZaT 84
(ﬁﬁ REEEABBABKYE) - 5 AHEEK
A L£BR A30,000/% 7T © 58 & & 51 &) #) BN 5

EBRE

“4 \

REBREEN  AEETANEEGEAE
ATEFHEKETADLINRM  7E - 88
B AEY FRE HFRINETE -

RAFERE » REBT HEEHREEEL6,042,000
7B 70 (20154 : 6,183,000/8 L) - KEFEE XA E
SR U LR A SR A RN

EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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29. RETIREMENT SCHEME

Under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
regulated by the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Authority in Hong Kong, with effect from 1 December 2000,
the Group participates in the MPF Scheme operated by an
approved trustee in Hong Kong and makes contributions for
its eligible employees. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make contributions
to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income,
subject to a cap of monthly relevant income. The cap of
monthly relevant income is HK$30,000. Contributions to the
MPF Scheme vest immediately.

In addition to the MPF scheme in Hong Kong, the Group
is also required to contribute a certain percentage of
employees’ monthly basic salaries to the defined contribution
retirement scheme in Macau, PRC, Taiwan and Japan.

During the year, the aggregate amounts of employer’s
contributions made by the Group were approximately
HK$6,042,000 (2015: HK$6,183,000). No forfeited
contribution was available for offset against existing
contributions during the year.
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30. ZNBZEAERRET BREE 30. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
@ AINE]ZEEA R (a) Statement of financial position of the Company
2016 2015
et TFET TET
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
EERERE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
FREBEE Non-current asset
REB AR ZKRE Investment in a subsidiary 61,198 61,198
REEE Current assets
e BAERE Deposits, prepayments and other
H At EUCER receivables 472 497
ARG Amounts due from subsidiaries 73,425 163,370
RITERREFRS Cash at banks and on hand 116,217 90,769
190,114 254,636
i N=N Current liabilities
FEE FRIE & H AL FEBR Accruals and other payables 3,859 18,829
IR Provision for taxation 195 _
4,054 18,829
REBEEFE Net current assets 186,060 235,807
EEFE Net assets 247,258 297,005
= EQUITY
R&ZR Share capital 26 50,245 50,245
EXe] Reserves 30(b) 197,013 246,760
fERAREE Total equity 247,258 297,005
REREZS On behalf of the Board of Directors
RN 2K 4]
Yuen Man Ying Leung Shing Chiu
HWITES WITES
Executive Director Executive Director
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30. KNI ZHBEMRAREHE &) 30. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

(b) AL AIGEE

(b) Reserves of the Company

R E REEF s

Share Retained
premium earnings Total
FAT FAT FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
720151811 At 1 January 2015 145,335 (21,258) 124,077
FERA Profit for the year - 147,806 147,806
BT ERRR B (F75711) Interim dividends paid (note 717) - (25,123) (25,123)

M2015F12H31HK At 31 December 2015 and

201651 81H 1 January 2016 145,335 101,425 246,760
FEE A Profit for the year - 498 498
SR REARS B (K77 11) Final dividends paid (note 11) - (50,245) (50,245)
R2016F12A31H At 31 December 2016 145,335 51,678 197,013
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31. tB AR 31. SUBSIDIARIES
R2016F12A318 * AAFTR NI B RATES At 31 December 2016, the Company had direct or indirect
HESBEERS 2SS Y ALAABRAT ¢ interests in the following subsidiaries, all of which are private

HEFRaGIT

companies with limited liability, the particulars of which are
set out as follows:

L,
NGIES T ERTRBRRE FE{G R TEXK
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully paid  Attributable equity
Name of company operations share capital interest Principal activities
E# fe
Directly Indirectly
RREERREERAA HERTHES 337,025/ Mk 17 - 100% = REEKR
£ 3£337,025% T
EGL Management Group BVI 337,025 shares totalling Investment holding
Company Limited United States dollar
(“US$”) 337,025
RREBKITHARAR 30 3,315,000 & @R - - 100% RERITE - BHETEMR
£ 3,315,000/ 7T # BN IR TR A m S R T
EGL Tours Company Limited Hong Kong 3,315,000 ordinary shares Provision of package tours,
totalling HK$3,315,000 FIT Products and ancillary travel
related products and services
RRERTH(BXR)BERRE  &E 21 BRI - AR221B T - 100% feftt BARMLRRITE - BET
7 on B R B ME TR TAR A E e SR AR TS
EGL Tours (Japan) Company Hong Kong 221 ordinary shares Provision of outbound package
Limited totalling HK$221 tours, FIT Products and ancillary
travel related products and
services in Japan
BRI T BRAR BB 550,000 % &% - - 100% HERE
([ERIRITA]) £ #£550,0007 7T
i-Evertravel Company Limited Hong Kong 550,000 ordinary shares Sales of air tickets
(“i-Evertravel”) totalling HK$550,000
FRERITHORPDAERAR &M 1,800,000 7t - 100% RERTE - BR{TEMK
BN IR T AR A m S R T
EGL Tours (Macau) Company Macau Macau Pataca Provision of package tours,
Limited (“MOP”) 1,800,000 FIT Products and ancillary travel

related products and services
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31. B AR (&)

31. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

DEEH

MR,
Place of

incorporation/

ERTRAZKRA

Issued and fully paid

FEfE I

Attributable equity

Name of company operations share capital interest Principal activities
EES
Directly Indirectly
ERESH (R ERAT  $E BARHA - 100%  RREHREAERAIRTE
AR#350,0007T
EGL Tours (Shenzhen) Company The PRC Paid up capital of Provision of inbound and local
Limited* Renminbi (“RMB”) 350,000 package tours in the PRC
REEER(BAR)ERAR RBREAES 1007 - A3£1,000ET - 100% REZR
EGL Holdings (Nippon) Limited ~ BVI 100 shares totalling Investment holding
US$1,000
%=\ &#Zipang. S. S* SWN 200X - - 80% R BA R RIS IR %
([Zipang]) £#£10,000,000H &
Kabushiki Kaisha Zipang. S. S*  Japan 200 shares totalling Provision of travel bus services
(“Zipang”) JPY10,000,000 in Japan
Rk (M) BRAR KBEZES 1000 H - &#£1,000%T - 100% REZR
EGL Holdings (Asia) Limited BVI 100 shares totalling Investment holding
US$1,000
EVRTERHERAR = 2,000,000(%R% 5 - - 62% REERENRKITE
(TELRITH) #£1£20,000,000574 %
Hit Travel Service Co. Ltd* Taiwan 2,000,000 shares totalling Provision of inbound package
(“Hit Travel”) Taiwan dollar 20,000,000 tours in Taiwan
RREREEEBRAR RBREAES  1008RMH - 1100ET - 100% RERR
EGL Investment Group Company BVI 100 shares totalling Investment holding
Limited US$100
RRERE (R E)ARL A BB 1REER - 21T - 100% RERR
EGL Investment (China) Hong Kong 1 ordinary share Investment holding
Company Limited totalling HK$1
BXSERERAR ERELHS 1R&RG - aH1ET - 100% REZR
Ebisu Holdings Company Limited BVI 1 share totalling US$1 Investment holding
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22,

MiEB /A= (&) 31. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
L,
NCIES pedgiok s ERTRAZRE FEAE R TEXK
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully paid  Attributable equity
Name of company operations share capital interest Principal activities
E# e
Directly Indirectly
BEEREBRAA BB 1RERR - 231ET = 100% RERR
Ebisu Investment Company Hong Kong 1 ordinary share Investment holding
Limited totalling HK$1
Ebisu Growth Limited* BA E &% 7810,000,000H - 100% R AEREEERERE
([Ebisu Growth )
Ebisu Growth Limited* Japan Paid up capital of Ownership, development and

(“Ebisu Growth”)

i BT E RS
# R BEEEMAINEBE LR

H E22016F12A31H IFF & © KN&EERK20165F

ARRFBERYL —KHHERAR - FA - Ebisu
Growth M 8 (FF 152 R M E3(d)) IR R AR B
—REEWBERR

B E2015F12A31H Lt FE - A& B 5 5l R
2015512 8 2015511 AN & /& & H R 3L W
ES il EPNGI

LA I B 2 TR RS IR BT BB
IR =

R20165F12 431 H FEFE AR A 25 4

7 7T (20154 : 1,864,000/ 7T ) © & FZipangfh

#9148,00078 7T (20154 : 126,000/67T) * M=L

IR T+ A5 492,437,000/ 7T (20154 : 1,738,000

5%7%) o FZE 0 IE A A 5 B A 100% 4 25 1) B /B
NA)Z IR AE R B RER o

%8 #92,585,000

JPY10,000,000

32.

management of hotel in Japan

*

English name for identification purpose only
2 registered as a wholly-foreign owned enterprise under the
PRC law

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group set up
a new subsidiary in the PRC in April 2016. During the year,
Ebisu Growth has become a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company upon the acquisition as detailed in note 3(d).

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group set up
two new subsidiaries in Taiwan and Japan in December
2015 and November 2015 respectively.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at
the end of the reporting period.

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

The total non-controlling interests as at 31 December 2016
are approximately HK$2,585,000 (2015: HK$1,864,000),
of which approximately HK$148,000 (2015: HK$126,000)
is attributable to the non-controlling interest of Zipang and
approximately HK$2,437,000 (2015: HK$1,738,000) is
attributable to the non-controlling interest of Hit Travel. The
non-controlling interests of these subsidiaries that are not
100% owned by the Group are considered to be immaterial.
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33. ABAR 5

FAGREVBRREAMBOBE IR S REH

S BEENETT R BT ¢

@ RAEAFREAFETRZ

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed

elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements, the

following transactions were carried out with related parties:

(@) Significant related party transactions during the

year
2016 2015
HtaE FET FAT
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
S TFEEARZEAS Rental paid to a related company
— KRBT — Great Port (i 15,895 15,303
B —RE:E AR EEEDbisu  Consideration paid for acquiring Ebisu
GrowthFT fif 2 R (B Growth from a related company
—RETTEE — Great Port Realty (il 124,500 =
SRIRMIRITE - BE{TES Amount received for provision of
KB M RTTIEBEE R & package tours, FIT Products and
AR 7% M B E A mIUER 2 ancillary travel related products and
ot services from a related company
— KRBT — Great Port (ii) 144 147
IR IRTTE - BH7TEM Costs charged by associates
REB M IRTTIHBBES KX regarding the provision of package
AR 7% I Bk i R A URER 2 tours, FIT Products and ancillary
EH travel related products and services
— EGLH4E — EGL Okinawa (i) 38,633 39,651
— EGLE X — EGL Korea (i) 38,495 19,643
mE L AT ERTTIER  Sales of travel related products and
B R AR services to associates
— EGL*#4E - EGL Okinawa (ii) 3 -
— EGL%#E - EGL Korea (ii) 3 =
REHBE QR Advertising sponsorship income from
BEEBKA an associate
— EGL#EE - EGL Korea (i) 242 =

144 F=HEEERERAT  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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(b)

33. BBt AR Z (&)
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ARBHTEEREAL - BEE - REEM
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1o

PR EXPIINEEE S - EAFEAEMARRER
RAER » AR HEALH B QR ERT
UEARPEEZTAEARGLEEAN -

FTEEEANRZFHY
AEE BEERHMIBERAEKE 2 M
FWT

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(@)

(b)

Significant related party transactions during the
year (Continued)

Notes:

(i) Rental expenses paid to a related company were
conducted in the normal course of business and in
accordance with terms of the lease agreements entered
into between the Group and the related company.

(i) The transactions were conducted on the basis of
mutually agreed terms.

The executive directors of the Company, Mr. Yuen, Mr.
Huen, Mr. Leung and Ms. Lee, are also directors and
have equity interests in Great Port.

Save as disclosed above, no contract of significance
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a
party, and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year.

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of
key management during the year was as follows:

2016 2015
FET FABT
HK$°000 HK$’000
EHESRA Short-term employee benefits 10,313 32,878
i e = Post-employment benefits 326 457
10,639 33,335
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4. EAREEHERE 34. CAPITAL AND OPERATING LEASE
COMMITMENTS
(@ BEIEE (a) Capital commitments
FHARNEENYE BERREARERZT Capital commitments in respect of capital expenditure
BRHOEARFRL 2 BANALERT : for acquisition of property, plant and equipment and
construction in progress of the Group are as follows:
2016 2015
FE T T
HK$’000 HK$’'000
ERIAVEAREE Contracted but not provided for 154,307 5,284

(b) ZEHEAE
AEERELBEHEMHES TYE B
RENIREE - HEZ VI HEPA1E6F
(20154 : 126%) »

146 F=EEERERAT  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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(b) Operating lease commitments

The Group leases a number of premises, office
equipment and travel buses under operating leases.
The leases run for an initial period of one to six years
(2015: one to six years).
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34. ERAREEREKRIE®)

(b)

SEHERIEE)

AEETAHEEERERE THRRRER

ENFERIHBEMT

34. CAPITAL AND OPERATING LEASE
COMMITMENTS (Continued)

(b) Operating lease commitments (Continued)

The Group had total future minimum lease payments

under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as

follows:

2016 2015
FExT T
HK$°000 HK$’000

HEWE Rented premises
—F R Within one year 20,886 25,701
F_FEEERF(EERME) In the second to fifth year, inclusive 4,726 18,908
25,612 44,609

NG Office equipment
—FR Within one year 2,856 2,823
FFEERTF(SEHEME) In the second to fifth year, inclusive 7,264 7,088
10,120 9,911

HEREE Rented travel buses
—F R Within one year 46,214 33,575
FE_FEERF(EHEMF) In the second to fifth year, inclusive 54,976 47,592
HEE Over five years 268 289
101,458 81,456
Bt Total 137,190 135,976
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35. B EMmER 35. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

AEE ESEERARERE

(@) MRAKERBELLE RS  UHERER
BlE D3R Ko A EAD R0 & 5 KA et

b) ZBAEENRERER: R

© RMmBAKERBREEENEHRES -

AEBEREAEEARESHRKREAUS - B
BRI AT - B2 ERERE - EAXH
RREIRERE  BEREHRS L EREARNE
B URRKRENEAEBNRRLDR - AEE
EAARBEMEARSBCR

AEBEREAGE  REKEHLNEREE
ZRBREHHEETHAE RERIARELE
B AEEAREINTRRZBEERE - Ak
RREER  BITHK - HEEBAHEEEMN
LR o

RAAEEBEERERBERE AR K216
F K2015F12HA3B 2 EA S E DA HO A
323,705,000/ Jt }2361,073,000/8 7T * &2 B &
EREAEATHRENRBIEERSE BB
BIRABKFE o

148 F=HEEERERAT  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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The Group’s capital management objectives include:

(@) to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it continues to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders;

(b)  to support the Group’s stability and growth; and

(c) to provide capital for the purpose of strengthening the
Group’s risk management capability.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to ensure optimal capital structure and
shareholder returns, taking into consideration the future
capital requirements of the Group and capital efficiency,
prevailing and projected profitability, projected operating
cash flows, capital expenditures and strategic investment
opportunities. The Group does not currently adopt any
formal dividend policy.

The Group manages the capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order
to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividend paid to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders, issue new shares, raise new debts
or sell assets to reduce debt.

Management of the Company regards total equity as
capital. The amount of capital as at 31 December 2016
and 2015 amounted to approximately HK$323,705,000
and HK$361,073,000 respectively, which the management
considers as optimal having considered the projected
capital expenditures and the projected strategic investment
opportunities.
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36. A% E by &2

KEIEE$¥%ﬂ$i¢ﬁEE$‘J$ CEE - RE
B2 RINERR - EFSTHEEADN KHIE
B@§I¥$’$Iﬁﬁﬁﬁuu2m%ﬂ 2 (BIEFE AN
KEXZRLEAEY) FERREABESR

ZoN

@

%o —fRME - NEBEBLERE R RIUR TR o

FIEZ

7R 62 1B R SR 17 T K T 1 e ) =R L B 2 RV B
RITERMEBRREREZ M ERERE - KE
B B ATSLE RN RGP ECR - AT - EFERY])
§*T ﬂfﬂ @2 B B E B E AR
o - ANEBEHRITIENPERBNE
E@%Eﬁ%mﬂéﬁ C BERAENMEBERT
RN —#n HAKENMBERALRES
jqﬁ/;'ﬂl! °

AREBNRITERBARRITERNRITTS
MEREBMAZRSREZFERERE - AR
AIEERRNEE R RITAERN E R
WAREKX - BHRERITFRERLEBE
HREMNE -

fim I = R G FI3 ANk Rt 2 B+ EE 2 A
HM A8 sEARRFLE - BIEHE2016%5F
12A31B EFEERIRENERNET 815
H#hnskim 2 49266,00078 7T o R A% & B) 1k
mMEMI SRS

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Exposures to interest rate, credit, liquidity and foreign
currency risks arise in the normal course of the Group’s
business. The board of directors meets periodically to
analyse and formulate measures to manage the Group’s
exposure to market risk (including principal changes in
interest rates and foreign currency rates), credit risk and
liquidity risk. Generally, the Group employs a conservative
strategy regarding risk management.

(@) Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk arising from
bank deposits and cash flow interest rate risk arising
from bank borrowings at floating rate. The Group
currently does not have an interest rate hedging policy.
However, the directors closely monitor interest rate
exposure and will consider hedging significant interest
rate exposure should the need arise. As the bank
borrowings are drawn down specifically for financing
the development of the hotel building in Japan, finance
costs were capitalised as part of the construction in
progress with no significant impact to the financial
performance of the Group.

The Group’s bank balances expose it to cash flow
interest rate risk due to the fluctuation of the prevailing
market interest rate on bank balances. The directors
of the Company consider the Group’s exposure to
interest rate risk in respect of bank balances is not
significant as interest-bearing bank deposits are within
short maturity periods in general.

If the interest rates had been increased or decreased
by 50 basis points at the beginning of the year and
all other variables were held constant, the capitalised
interest on construction in progress would have been
increased or decreased by approximately HK$266,000
for the year ended 31 December 2016. The assumed
changes have no impact on the other components of
equity.
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36. M EMERE (&)

(@) FIEE (&)
NSRS A+ AR AESHFAEE
B3R & M F R a0 & 1B A e BB )R A -

ZE AR
EERBRE-RERMIAZRZHFHEERE
FER T EEETEE Y U AR EXT B
BRZER °

®)

AEEHRZEERE
BEFAEPRTEER
R B REEZ BREE (A E36(e)

SFBERANBREE
BRI RS HRE
L)

o

AEERGERE S MEMEREEAREE
REEERRSES o 25 BK e EE A B
RSB FREMFEARUSR X ZH FE
%IESZZEETEJ%K%EEL R o NEBZRITH
ﬁ%?‘ﬁﬁ(?ﬁ“%\% R EK&E‘%E%%&
Zliﬁllﬂiﬁﬁuuﬁi\ﬁﬂikﬁff

M EE AR RS A RRNI B2 ER
R ERX ST ERRLERLT ﬁﬁl
HERARRZHFENENSIRZEER
BR ?EE$$%IT\@IMZ?EE“$H&@M
SIEEBRER -

RAFEE  AEE-BETZEEERR
BZEFHRBREA -
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(@)

(b)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

The increase or decrease by 50 basis points
represents directors’ assessment of a reasonably
possible change in interest rates over the year until the
end of next reporting period.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty
to a financial instrument would fail to discharge its
obligation under the terms of which and cause a
financial loss to the Group.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk mainly arises from
granting credits to customers in the ordinary course of
its operations and is limited to the carrying amounts of
financial assets recognised at the end of the reporting
period, as summarised in note 36(e).

The Group’s trade and other receivables are actively
monitored to avoid significant concentrations of credit
risk. The Group is not exposed to any significant
credit risk from any single counterparty or any group
of counterparties having similar characteristics. The
Group’s bank balances are deposited with major
banks in Hong Kong, Macau, Japan and Taiwan. The
Group has no other significant exposure to credit risk.

With respect to credit risk arising from the amounts
due from a related company and an associate,
the Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from
repayment default of counterparties is limited as the
counterparties have good credit history and the Group
does not expect any significant loss of uncollected
advances from these entities.

The credit policies have been followed by the Group
throughout the year and are considered to be effective.
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36. M EKREE2)
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REYELDER
mBESRR S RA BB ERTEEER
SREMERMEELSCRABHEBIEE
mELRER °

AEBERREREEBRIER R Z—ENX
FRELFEFEY RAKEEERHE
ERRERSRERNBDZTE

AEEZHRRENERRAREHARES
BRIRBESHR - AKEZRPESER
EREERAREERSREZE N AETT
HEBEME AEEFEABELEZESRE
RRBETZERRR

TR BEHRAKEFRTESRBER
BARURBRERE(BRERSOMEL
WEE - AR RS BRI RGFERNE
MR FEOREREOER B EANEEK
AXNHRFEY -

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will
not be able to meet its obligations associated with its
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or
other financial assets.

The Group monitors and maintains a level of cash
and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations and
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements in the short and long
terms. The liquidity of the Group is primarily dependent
on its ability to maintain adequate cash inflows from
operations to meet its debt obligations. The Group
relies on internally generated funds as a significant
source of liquidity.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the
Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities, based on
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based
on rates current at the reporting date) and the earliest
date the Group can be required to pay.
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36. M EMERE (&)

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(c) FmEEDRERE) (c) Liquidity risk (Continued)
BRRER -£  -EHE WENL
REE #ReRE AAPE ETEBRFE EFERLF hENE
Total Over Over
contractual Within one year two years
Carrying undiscounted  one year or but within but within Over
amount  cash flows  on demand two years five years five years
TEL TiEx THEx THT THEL TEL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2016
AT Non-derivatives:
%”%JEHEE Trade payables 48,220 48,220 48,220 - - -
fEs MIE&H/@F 18 Accruals and other payables 51,595 51,595 51,595 - - -
FEHE?#M" Amounts due to associates 4,899 4,899 4,899 = = =
BITER Bank borrowings 53,287 57,540 595 4,730 17,469 34,746
158,001 162,254 105,309 4,730 17,469 34,746
BRRE
FEHE AHReRE BEX  PR=EA =ZFT+_fEA
Total
contractual Less than Three to
Carrying  undiscounted three twelve
amount cash flows ~ On demand months months
THET THET AT THT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2015
T Non-derivatives:
EHENE Trade payables 52,087 52,087 8,945 42,451 641
eI EMmEMEE  Accruals and other payables 67,087 67,087 16,448 13,065 37,574
JEfTHEE DRI Amount due to an associate 4,594 4,594 4,594 = =
123,718 123,718 29,987 55,516 38,215
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(d)

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that the fair
value or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange
rates.

The Group has foreign currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from the income from provision of
package tours, ancillary travel related services as well
as costs of services consumed in package tours, FIT
Products, and ancillary travel related products and
services in currencies other than the group entities’
functional currency. Approximately 51.6% (2015:
44.3%) of costs and approximately 4.8% (2015: 3.4%)
of the Group’s turnover are denominated in currencies
other than the group entities’ functional currency for
the year.

The Group also has foreign currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from the balances of assets and
liabilities in currencies other than the group entities’
functional currency. The carrying amounts of the
foreign currency denominated monetary assets and
liabilities at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:

2016 2015
F#Ex T
HK$’000 HK$’000
EE Assets

| JPY 31,411 29,199
AR RMB 31,743 36,009
63,154 65,208

afE Liabilities
] JPY 25,902 34,719
AR RMB 27 74
25,929 34,793
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EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The management monitors foreign currency exposure
by closely monitoring the movements of foreign
currency rates. The management has set up a policy
to require group entities to manage their foreign
exchange risk against their respective functional
currency.

The directors consider that the Group’s exposure
to foreign currency risk in respect of MOP is not
significant because MOP’s fluctuation with HK$ is
immaterial.

The following table indicates the approximate change in
the Group’s profit for the year and retained earnings in
response to reasonably possible changes in the foreign
exchange rates to which the Group has significant
exposure at the end of the reporting period. The
sensitivity analysis includes balances between Group
companies where the denomination of the balances is
in a currency other than the functional currencies of
the lender or the borrower. A positive number below
indicates an increase in profit for the year and equity
where the Hong Kong Dollar strengthens against the
relevant currency. For a weakening of the Hong Kong
Dollar against the relevant currency, there would be
an equal and opposite impact on the profit for the
year and equity, and the balances below would be
negative. The 5% rate is used when reporting foreign
currency risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management’s best assessment of the
possible changes in foreign exchange rates.
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36. A5 ERMmEIE &) 36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(d) IMNER Sz (&) (d) Foreign currency risk (Continued)
DA BRRRE 9 37 TR 15 3R 25 F [ 1) I NFE P 3= The following sensitivity analysis has been determined
ZBEBES L EEETE @ WRBREEERE based on the assumed percentage changes in foreign

exchange rates taking place at the beginning of the
reporting year and held constant throughout the year.

2016 2015
FERMRRERR FE N RIRE &
2, O =, Ok )
Increase/(decrease) Increase/(decrease) in
in profit for the year profit for the year and
and retained earnings retained earnings
=i AR HE AR
JPY RMB JPY RMB
FE T FET FETT FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
[ R E) Changes in exchange rate:
BT INEE HK$ appreciates by 5% against
FHE5% the foreign currencies (230) (1,324) 230 (1,500)
BT INEE HK$ depreciates by 5% against
B2 185% the foreign currencies 230 1,324 (230) 1,500
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36. A EREIE &) 36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(e) HEFNEI Dz e EERE EHE (e) Summary of financial assets and liabilities by
category
EETBIRAER 2 2 EEESRIATS The carrying amounts presented in the consolidated
BEENSRBEER statement of financial position related to the following

categories of financial assets and financial liabilities:

2016 2015
FiET FATT
HK$’000 HK$’000
TREE Financial assets
ER Kk EKZIE(BEETFER N Loans and receivables (including cash at
EFRe): banks and on hand):
2 5 W R Trade receivables 2,224 1,710
7] M H A FE U ER Deposits and other receivables 30,895 30,686
JE Uk B8 28 A A1 BR X Amount due from a related company 2,656 2,503
JFE I B % N B BR 3K Amount due from an associate 4,703 834
HEIRIRITFR Pledged bank deposits 22,461 21,965
RITFERNREFRE Cash at banks and on hand 260,876 453,145
323,815 510,843
THEeE Financial liabilities
HEENATEZERBE Financial liabilities measured at amortised
cost:
E S5 REMNER Trade payables 48,220 52,037
FERTFOA K E A FE A BR Accruals and other payables 51,595 67,087
FEITHE & A R BR 5K Amounts due to associates 4,899 4,594
RITEN Bank borrowings 53,287 -
158,001 123,718

156 =EEERERAT  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

) g
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